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Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC 2024 financtal statements

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION
AND APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that present fairly the financial position of Demir
Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC (the “Bank™) as at 31 December 2024, and the results of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity for the year then ended, in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for:
° Properly selecting and applying accounting policies;

® Presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

e Providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Bank's financial position
and financial performance; and

° Making an assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Management is also responsible for:
° Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls, throughout the Bank;

® Maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Bank's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Bank, and which enable them to ensure that the
financial statements of the Bank comply with IFRS;

° Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with the Kyrgyz Republic legislation and IFRS;
° Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Bank; and
° Preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 were approved by the Management on 20 March 2025 and
signed on its behalf by:

Mr\Sevki Sdrilar / | P ‘
Genkral Ma_igit g B Jes . Chief Accountant
20 March 202 €% S, y S4f 20 March 2025

Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic
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Independent auditor’'s report

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC (hereinafter,
the "Bank"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and

statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2024 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ (IESBA) International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards)
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Kyrgyz Republic, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of management and the Audit Committee for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the
Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

S Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

> Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that Wﬁr
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Auditor / General Direc :

Ernst & Young Audit LLC

Qualification certificate of the auditor: Individual registration number of Ernst & Young
Series A No. 0366, registration number Audit LLC in the Unified State Register of Audit
No. 0446 of 22 October 2018 Organisations admitted to audit entities of
Individual registration number No. 11030 public interest, large businesses No. 2100201
dated 11 July 2023 dated 22 June 2023 issued by the Office for

Requlation and Supervision of the Financial
Market under the Ministry of Economy and
Commerce of the Kyrgyz Republic

Toktogul Str., 125/1, 720001
Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic

20 March 2025

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

2024 financial statements

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Notes 2024 2023

Interest income calculated using the effective interest rate 5 4,172,312 3,374,262
Interest expense 5 (1,069,736) (789,254)
Net intetest income 3,102,576 2,585,008
Credit loss expense 6 (285,248) (103,725)
Net interest income after credit loss expense 2,817,328 2,481,283
Fee and commission income ¥ 1,187,171 1,396,120
Fee and commission expense 7 (781,599) (723,583)
Net fee and commission income 405,572 672,537
Net gains from foreign currencies:
- dealing 1,070,448 1,310,643
- translation differences 7,005 28,281
Net losses on modification of financial assets measured at amortised

cost 13 (23,358) (2,668)
Net losses on initial recognition of financial assets at amortised cost (5,548) =
Other operating income 8 36,971 82,762
Non-intetest income 1,085,518 1,419,018
Petrsonnel expenses 9 (1,107,548) (971,947)
Other operating expenses 9 (886,982) (828,136)
Othet impairment and provisions 428 (10,776)
Non-interest expenses (1,994,102) (1,810,859)
Profit before income tax 2,314,316 2,761,979
Income tax expense 10 (243,967) (282,933)
Profit for the year 2,070,349 2,479,046
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax = -
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,070,349 2,479,046
Earnings per share, KGS 21 502 1,240

Signed and authorised for release on behalf of the Management:

L
. Sevid Sarilat W Mr. Tilek Ashitbaev
Geheral Manager ¢ Chief Accountant
20 March 2025 20 March 2025
Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic

The accompanying notes on pages 5-52 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC 2024 financial statements
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2024

(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

31 December 31 December

Notes 2024 2023
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11 25,650,338 24,060,747
Amounts due from credit institutions 12 8,535,165 6,735,371
Loans to customers 13 29,091,829 21,658,894
Investment securities at amortised cost 14 2,352,320 1,130,989
Property and equipment 15 414,610 307,043
Intangible assets 15 250,900 211,908
Right-of-use assets 16 336,211 343,983
Other assets 17 1,011,450 989,158
Total assets 67,642,823 55,438,093
Liabilities
Amounts due to banks 18 41,105 42382
Amounts due to customers 19 52,587,044 43,213,915
Other borrowed funds 20 4,511,513 2,973,432
Curtent income tax liabilities 46,242 71,743
Deferred income tax liabilities 10 73,842 35,530
Lease liabilities 16 344,997 357,769
Other liabilities 17 459,143 442,734
Total liabilities 58,063,886 47,137,505
Equity
Share capital 21 6,000,000 2,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 1 1
Retained earnings 3,578,936 6,300,587
Total equity 9,578,937 8,300,588
Total liabilities and equity 67,642,823 55,438,093

igned and authorised for release on behalf of the Management:

l\ﬁ.ﬂSevkj arilar

General Mynager

20 March 20

Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic

The accompanying notes on pages 5-52 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Demir Kyrgyz Intetnational Bank CJSC 2024 financial statements
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Notes 2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received 3,886,195 3,260,721
Interest paid (942,190) (713,829)
Fee and commission received 1,187,171 1,396,120
Fee and commission paid (781,815) (723,649)
Realised gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies 1,070,448 1,310,643
Other income received 23,639 82,150
Personnel expenses paid (1,105,912) (911,891)
Other operating expenses paid (558,379) (572,594)
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in operating
assets and liabilities 2,779,157 3,127,671
Net increase in operating assets
Amounts due from credit institutions (1,849,012) (2,593,861)
Loans to customers (7,810,770) (7,787,482)
Other assets (105,554) (125,791)
Net increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities
Amounts due to banks 408 (15,899)
Amounts due to customers 10,133,171 614,777
Other liabilities (34,759) 30,989
Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities before
income tax 3,112,641 (6,749,596)
Income tax paid (231,337) (245,975)
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities 2,881,304 (6,995,571)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment securities at amortised cost (3,609,279) (1,642,476)
Proceeds from redemption of investment securities at amortised cost 2,564,525 645,228
Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets (364,051) (207,245)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,408,805) (1,204,493)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from other borrowed funds 20 3,901,185 2,526,147
Repayment of other borrowed funds 20 (2,278,462) (319,766)
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilitites (84,216) (91,832)
Dividends paid 21 (792,000) =5
Net cash from financing activities 746,507 2,114,549
Effect of expected credit losses on cash and cash equivalents 1 7,727 (649)
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (637,142) 871,025
Net increase / (dectease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,589,591 (5,215,139)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the begmnmyg»gﬁh&ﬂ“ B 5 24,060,747 29,275,886

ash and cash equivalents as at the end of HHee 25,650,338 24,060,747

ed and au sed for release on behal¥ ofH Y,

» ™

20 March
Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic

The accompanying notes on pages 5-52 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC

2024 financial statements

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2024

(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)
Additional
Share paid-in Retained Total
Notes capital capital earnings equity
As at 1 January 2023 2,000,000 1 3,821,541 5,821,542
Profit for the year = = 2,479,046 2,479,046
Other comprehensive income o = = =
Total comprehensive income for the
year o = 2,479,046 2,479,046
As at 31 December 2023 2,000,000 1 6,300,587 8,300,588
Profit for the year - - 2,070,349 2,070,349
Other comprehensive income b s = =
Total comprehensive income for the
year - = 2,070,349 2,070,349
Dividends declared 21 — = (792,000) (792,000)
Increase in share capital 21 4,000,000 & (4,000,000) -
As at 31 December 2024 6,000,000 1 3,578,936 9,578,937

Signed and authorised for release on behalf of the Management:

Mi\ SevkifSarilar Mr. Tilk Ashirbaev
Gerleral Manager Chief Accountant

20 Match 2025 20 March 2025

Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic

The accompanying notes on pages 5-52 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Demir Kytgyz International Bank C)SG ‘Notes to 2024 financial statements

(i thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

1. General information

Principal activities

Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC thercinafter ~ the “Bank™) was established it “the Kyigyz Republic as a closed
]amt -stock conipany on.2 May 1997. The principal activilies aré deposit faking and customer acCount maintenance, lending,
issuance of gu'u"mtces, ‘processing cash and settloment operations, transactions with securities and foreign exchange
aperations. The activities of the Bank are regulated by the National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic (hercinafter —the: “NBKR™).
The Baok bas a general hanking license # 035 1ssued on 11 March 1999, which was renewed on 22 June 2017, The Bank is 2
member of the state deposit insurance system in the Kyrgyz chubll.c

‘The Bank’s registered office 15 245, Clui Avenue, Bishkek, 720001, thé Kyrgyz Republic,

As at 31 December 2024 the Bank has fourtéen branches and sixteen outlets in the Kyrgyz Republic (31 December. 2023
fourteen braniches and nineteen outlets).

Shareholders

Asat 31 December 2024 and 2023 the following shareholders-owned outstanding shares of the Bank:
31 December 2024, % 31 December 2023, %.

Mr. Halit Cingillioglu 92.5 025
HCBG Holding B.V. 7.5 7.5
Total 100.0 100.0

Asat 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Bank is ultimately controlled by Mr, Halit Cingillioglu.
Operating environment.

Luflation. and the currentt economic ehvironment

The unp'lct of the macroctoniomic and geopo]mcal environmerit has éxacerbated inflationary pressures in almost all
economies atotnd the woild, High and tising. energy pr:ces are. having a negative impact on the cost of dther goods and
services, rcsultmg in mgmﬂc:mt consumer-price incteases in many coungries, While prices of many commeoditics, including:
food have fallen sirice their record highs earlics thls year, they remain high. In 2024, inflation in the Kyrgyz Repubhc was

6.3% (in 2023: 7.3%) according to the official data published by the NBKR. Due to. the growth of geopolitical tension, there
]ms been a significant growth: of voladlity in the stack and curtency markets.

The Bank continues to assess the effect of these.events and changing economié conditions on its activities, Cutrent 1nﬂ'1110nary
pressures, macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainity affect the assumptions and estimation uncertainty associdted with. the
measuremient of assets and liabilitiés,

2. Basis of-_pr_epara’tion

General
These financial stafements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IERS™),

‘The Bank presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity based on the Bank’s intentdon and petceived ability
fo recover/settle the majority. of assets/labilities of the corresponding financial statement line item. An analysis regarding
tecovery of setlement within 12 months after the reporting date. (cureent) and more than 12 months after the reporting date
(non-current).is presented in Nose 27.

The finiancial statements-have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed in the accounting policies
below.

These financidl statements are presented in thousands of Kyrgyz Som (“KKGS”), except per share amounts and unless
otherwise indicated. '

The ﬁnan‘éiai statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 were autorfsed for issue by the Management Board on
20 March 2025.



Demit Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC Notes to 2024 financial statements

(in thousands of Kyrgys Som)

3.  Summary of material accounting policies

Changes in accounting policies

The Bank applied for the-first time certain amendments.to the standards, which are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after T January 2024, The Bank has not early adopted any standaids; interpretations or amendments that have been issued
Tut are fiot yet effective.

The following ariiendments became effective-as at 1 January 2024:

. Amendments to TAS 1 — Clavsification of Liabifities as Crivrent-or Non-curreit amtl Now-civrrent Liabifities with Covenaiti;
* Amendments to TRRS 16 — Lease Iiabii{fy‘ i a Sale and Leasebick;
»  Amendments to IAS 7 and 1FRS 7 — Diselosnres: Supplier Finaice Arangonents

These amendments had no impact on the Bank’s financial statements.

Fairvalue measurement

"Ihe Bank measures fnancial instraments carried at fair value througlt profit or loss (FVPL) and fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCT) and non-financial assets such asinvestment property, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Pair value is theé price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability inan ordedy transaciion between
market participants at the measurement date. "The Fait value measurement is based on the presumpiion that the trafisaction to
scll the assét or transfer the Hability takes place either:

) Tix the principal macket for the asset or liability; of
- In the absence of a principil market, in the most-advantageous market for the asset .or Tiability.

The ‘principal-or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Bank. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measared using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asser or Tiability, ‘tssulmng that market
participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of 2 non-ﬁmnc:nl agset takes mto account a market
patticipant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and lest use or by selling it to anothet
marketparticipant that would use.fhe asset in its highest and best use.

The Bank uses valuation fechniques that are 2 appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are av: ailable to
measure fair valug, maximising the use of felevant obseivable 1r1puls and minimising thie use ofunabservable i injruts. All assets
and liabilities For which fair valué is measured or disclosed in the finangial statements ‘ate caregorised within the fair value
hierarchy, d_t.scnhed. as follows, based on the l_owcst level input that ig significant to the fair value measntement as.a whole;

. Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices-in active markets for ideritical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
dixectly ot indirectly observable;

. Tevel 3 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair wvalue measurement.is
unobservable.

For assets and Habilities thatare recopnised at fair value in the financial statements on 4 fecutring basis, the Bank detéimines

whether transfers have occurred listween Levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing categorisation (baséd an the lowest level

input that is significant to tié fair value measiiwrement 4s a.whole) ar the end of eachi reporting period.

Financial agsets and lialyilities
Initial recognition

Date of recoguition

All tegular way purchases : and sales of financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the trade date'i.e. the date that the Banl
commits to purchase theasset o1 liability. Regular way purchases o sales are purchases or sales of financial assets and h’ll]illllf:b
that reqaive delivery of assets and liabilifes-within the period geaerally established by regulation oi conventon in the
marketplace:



Demir Kyrgyz Interbational Bank CJ8C Notes to 2024 financial statemerits

(in thonsands of Kyrgyz Son)

3. Summary of material accounting policies {(continued)
Financial assets'and liabilities (continued)

Initial measurement

“The classification of findncial instruments at initial récognition depends oii theit contractial terms and the business model fot
fnanaging the instrumenis. Financial instruments are 1111t1'111y measuted at thidiy fair valive and, except in the case of financial
assers and ﬁrnncm] ll‘lblllﬂe"i recorded at fair value thiough proﬁt or lass, transaction costs-are added to, ot subitrdcted from,
this amount.

. Megsurenent categories of finaicial asséts and labilities

The Bank classifies all of its finaricial assets based on the business rmodel for managing the assets and the asset’s.contractual
terms, measured at either

° Amornsed cost,
° Tair vilue through other comprehensive income (FVOCT),
. Fair valie through profit orloss (FVPL).

The Bank classifies and measures its-dervative and trading portfolio at FVPL. The Bank may designate financial instruments
at FVPL, if so doing eliminates ox significantly reduces measurement or tecognition inconsistencies;

Financial liabilities, ther than lodn commitments and financisl guarantees, ate mcdsured at amhortised cost or at 'VPL when
they are lield for trading, ate derivative instruments or the fair valuc designation is.applied.

Amgunts due from credit fnustitutons, foans to customers, fvesiments securittes al amoivised rost

"The Bank osily measures athounts due from credit institutions, loans to-customers and other financial investments at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met;

. The financidl assct is held within 2 business model with-the: ahjéctive to hold finasicial assets in ordet to collect
contractual cash flows;

. The contractual terms of the-financial asset give rise on speclﬂcd dates 1o cash flows that-are solely payments of
ptincipal and interest.on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI).

Business mode! assessment

The Bank determiiies its business model at the level that bést reflects how it manages groups of financial assets fo achieve its
busingss objective. The Bank’s business model is not assessed on ab Instrument-by-instriment basis, bat at ¢ higher level of
apgregated port folios and is based on ohservable factofs such.as:

- How the petformance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model at¢ evaluated and
repiotted to the entity’s key manageément pegsonuel,

. The mkq that affect the performance of the businiess model {and the fiiancial assets lield within I_ha't': b';z_sincss model)
and, in particular, the way those risks are mianaged,

o How managets:of the business ate compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of
the assets managed-or on the contractual cash. flows collecied);

o The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Bank’s assessment,

"The business model dssessinent is based on reasortably u;pcct:.d scenarios without taking ‘worst ¢ase’ or “stress.case’ “scenarios
into account, If cash flows afterinitial recognition are realised in a way-that is different from the Bank’s original expectations,
the Bank does niot chanpe the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates
such information when assessing newly otdginated or newly purchased. financial asscts going forwaid,



Demir Kyrgyz Intérnatioial Bank CJSC Notes tio 2024 financial statemerits

(in thonsands of Kyrgys; Sens)

3. Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
Findncial assets and liabilities. (continued)
Initial measarement Eontinned)

The SPPI text

Ag'nsecond stefyof its classification - process the Bank assessés the contractual terms of ! financial asset fo-identify whether they
meet the SPPI test.

“Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recogpition and may change
over the life of the financial asset (for example, 1f there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).

"The most significant elements of intefest within a lending. armangement. are typically the considération foi the time value of
nigney and éredit tisk. To make the SPPI assessmint, the Bank applies ]udgcmcnt and corsiders relevant factors such as the
currency: in which the financial asset is denominated, and the pesiod for which the interest rate is sct.

In contrast, conltiaciual terms that iniroduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or voladlity in the contractual cash
flows that are unrelated to a basic lending srrangement do not-give tise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and intetest on thé amount outstanding. In suchi cases, the financial asset is réqiired to be measured at FVPL,

Financial garantees and undraws loan convmitments
‘The Bank issues financial guarantees and loan commitments,

Financial gaarantees ate initially recognised in the financial statements. at fair value, being the premium received, Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Bank’s liability under each guarantee is measuted at the amount initally recognised less cumulative
amertisation recognised in the statement. of profit or loss and ather comprehensive income.

Undrawn loan commitmeénts and létteis. of credits aré commitmeénts wnder which, over the durafion of the commitment,
the Bank is required to piovide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customiér.,

The Bank occasionally issues loan commitments at below marker interest rates drawdown. Such commitments are iiitially
tecognised.at fair value and subsequcntly measuted at the: higher of the amount of the ECL: allowance and the amount initially
recognised Tess, when. appropriate, the' cumulative amount of income recognised.

Posformance gnaranices

Performance guarantees nfe contracts that provide.compensation if agother party fails to peiform 4 contractual obligation.
The risk under performance guaraniee contracts 3§ the pogs'ib'i]it'y that the faflure to perform the contraciual obligatdon by
another party ‘oceuss. 'Pe'rforz'ﬁ:'\ncé‘-'gua’mnt‘ees are it scope of IFRS 9 and -'eﬁfeclively- are a fotm of a {:ontiﬂge_nt loan
commitment, Provision for pecférmance guarantees are ineasured under IFRS 9.

Cash.and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on Liand, amounts due from the NBKE, including obhgﬁtory reserves, and amounts
duc from eredit institutions that matire within thtce. months of the:date of origination. and ‘ate fiee from. contractual
encumbrances.

Borrowings

Issued financial instruments or theit components are classified as liabilities; where the substance of the contractual
arrangement tesults in the Bank having an ghligaton cither to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or.to satisfy
the ol)hg‘mon other than by the exchange of 2 fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number. of own
equity instfuments. Such instroments include. amounts dué. to cfedit instititions, amounts due to customers and othet
bortowed funds: After initial recognition, borfowings ate subsequently measured at amortised cost vsing the effeciive interest
method, Guins and Josses are recognised in profit or loss when the borrowings are detecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.



Demic Kyrgyz Taternational Bank CISC Notes to 2024 financial statements

(in thonsands of Kyrgyz Som)

3.  Summary of material a.ccounti_ng_po‘l_ic’ies_ (continued)
Leases

Bank as a lessee

"The Bank applies 4 single rer‘.:ogniti‘an and measuremyent approach-for all leases, except for short-tetin leases and leases of low-
yalue assets, The Bank recognises léase Labilitics to make lease payments and tight-of-usé¢ assets tepresenting the tght to use
the undexlying assets.

Right-gf-use gssets

The Bank recognises right-of-use asscts at the commencement date of the'lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right- of-use assets are measured ar cost, less any accumulated dcprecmtion and impairment losses, aixd adjusted for
any remeasiicement of lease liabilities: The cost of right-of-use assets includes. the amount of lease liabilities fecognised;-initial
dircct costs incureed, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any léasc incentives feceived. Unless
the Bank is redsonably certain to obtain owiieishiip of the leased asset at the end of the lease teim, the recognised right-of-use
assers are depreciated on a straight-line basis over theshorier of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Righofiusé assets
are subject 10 impairment. '

Lease liabiliies

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognises lease liabilitics measured ac the present value of leage paymients
fo be made over the lease term. The lease payments. include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease intentives receivable, variable lease paymients that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to e paid under
residual ‘value grarantees, The lease payments also include the exercise. price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Bank and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Bank exercising
the option to terminate, The vatable lease paymeats-that do not-depend on an index ‘or # rate are recognised as expensc in
the period on which the eveat or condition that triggers the payment occuts,

I caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Bank uses theincremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the Jease 18 not readily deferminable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
]i"lbilifics'is incicas'cd to l'éﬂét,t thc 'u:f:l,ctiojl of intcrcsl:' Jnd rtduced fol: t]lc Jease pfl‘)' rncnts"m'lde In éddition, the C'ii.'rying

fixed ll'.’.’ibc ‘payments or a changc in the assessment to pur clmse the unclerlymg asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-valite assets

The Bank ‘applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.c., those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from’ rhe commencement date and. do not coataina purchase optlcm) Tt also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered of low value {i.e,; below USD 5,000).
Lease payments on short-term leases. and leases of low-yalue assets are recognised as expense on-a s_tmlght—]me, basis over
the lease term.

Renegotiated loans

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve extending
the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions.

The Bank derécognises a financial asset, such s a loan to a customer, when the terms.and conditions have been renegotiated
to the extent that, subsstantially, it becomes a new loan, with. the: d1ffert.ncc recognised a8 a derecognition gain or loss; to the
extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly 1cc0gnlscd loans are classified as Stage 1 for BCL
measurement purposes, unless the new loan is decmed 1o be POGL When asscssing whethet ot not to: derecogmse a loan to-
a customer, amongst others, the Bank considers the following factors:

. Change in currency of the loan;
. Change in counterparty;
. 1f the modification is such that the fnstrument would no longer méet the SPPI critefion.
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3.  Summnary of material accounting policiés (continued)

Renegotiated loans: (continued)

If. the modificalion does not tesult in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in
derecognition. Based on the chang(, ins-cash flows discounted at the original effective interest tate (EIR), the Bank records a
modificationgain :or loss as a separate ine in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income; to the-extent
that an impairment loss has not alfeady been recorded.

For modifications not resulting in defecoguition, the 'B'mk wlso reassesses wihicther here has been 4 significant increase in. credit
risk or whether the assets should be classified as crt,dltalmp"uted Once an asset has been classificd as credit-impaited as the
result of modification, it will remain in Stage 3 fora minimum 6-month probation peried. In order for the restrucmred loan
to be reclassified out of Stage 3, regular payments of more than an insignificant amount of principal or interest have ‘been.
made during half of the probation period in accordance with the modified payment schedule:

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (o1, where applicable 2 part of a financial asset or.part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
where:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

° The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows-from the asset, or retained the right t6 receive cash flows from
the fsset, but his assumied an-obligation to pay them in full without matertal delay to 2 third party uider a “pass-
through™ arfangement; and

. The Bank either (1) has transferred substantially all the 1isks and rewards of the asset, or (b} lins neither transferred:fior
fetained substantially 4l the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Bank has transferred its rights to téceive cash flows from an gsser-and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred coritrol of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of
the Bank’s connm.ung involvement in -the asset. Continuing ‘involvement that takes the form of a guarintee. over
the transferred asset is m{,a:,uted at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maxinum -amount of
consideration that the Bank could be required to repay.

Where contining involvement takes the forni of 2 written and /or purclmrsed aption (mcludmg a easli-settled option or similar
provlslon) on the tiansferved assef, the extent of the Bank’s continuing involveinent is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Bank may reputchase, except that in the case of a wiitten put option (inclading a cash-settled option or similar
provision} on an asset measuted at fair value, the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement s limited to the lowet of the fair
value of the transferred asset and fhe option exercise price.

Write-off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their enfirety only when the Bank has stopped putsuing the secovery. IF
the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated foss allowance; the difference is first treated as an.addition to-
the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries-ate credited fo credit loss
expense. A write-off constitites n derecogriiion event.

Financial labilities
A finaneial liability is detecognised when the obligation ihder thé-]i_ii_bi]j_ty is discharged or cancelled or-expires.

Where an existing financial Uability is replaced by another from the same lender.on substantially different terms, ot the terms
of an existing ]nbzhty ate substantially modified, sucly an exchange or modification is treated as a derecogmt:on of the original
liahility and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective cartying amounts 13 recognised in profit of
logs.

it
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3. Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

Taxation
The current h_ico_me tax expense s caleulated m accordance with the regulations.of the Kyrgys Republic.

Deferred tax assets-and ligbilities ate caleulated in respect of temporaiy differences using the liability method: Deferred income
taxes ate provided for all temporaiy differences ardsing between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values
for findncial reporting purposes, .exbept where the deferred incomic tax atises. froin thi biitial recogniticn of goodwill or of an
asset or hibility in a transaction thit 15 noi a business combingtion and, at the tdme of the transaction, affects néither
the accountng profit nor taxable p’r’dﬁt'bt.]oss,

& deferred tax -asset is recorded only to the.extent thar it is, probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary diffetences can be utilised. Deferred tax: assets and lisbilities are measured at tax rates thai are
expected ta apply to the perod when the asset is realised ot the liability is scttled, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising oninvestments in subsidiaries, assoctates and joint ventures,
except-where the fiming of the reversal of the femporary differénce can be controlled and.itis probablé that thé temporary
difference will not reverse in the foresecable future.

There are. varlous operating taxes in Kyrgyz Republic, that are assessedon_ the Bank activities. These taxes are included as a
component-of other operating cxpenses.

Properiy and equipment

Property and equipment ate caitied at cost, excluding tlie costs of day-to-day servicing; less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impaitment. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of equipment -when that cost is incurred if
the recognifion criteria arve met:

The cazrying values of property and equipment ate reviewed for impairment when eveats or changes in circomstances indicate
that-the carrying value may not be récoverablé,

Depreciation of ap asset begins when itis available for use, Depreciation is calculated. on a sttaight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings.ind constructions B
Computers and office equipment 3-5
Vehicles 5
Leasehold improveéments Upto 5

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each financial year-end.

Costs reldted to repairs aind renewals are chargéd when Incuried and included in other operating expenses; unless they qualify
for capitalisation.

Intangible-assets
Iitangible assets include computer $oftware and licenses.

Intang1ble assets-acquired separately : are measured on initial recogmtlon at cost. The cost of- mmn‘;,lble assets acquired in 2
business combination is fair value as at the- date of acquisition. l*ollowmg initia] recognition, intangible assets are carrded at
cost less any accumulated amorfisation and -any accumulated impairment losses: The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite-or indefinite. Intangﬂ)le asscts .with finite lives arc amortised over the useful cconomic lives of 3 to
5 years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Amortisation
periods and methads for intangible.assets with indefinite useéful lives are teviewed af Jéast at each financial yéar-end.

Provisions

Provisions ate recogniscd when the Bank has & present legidl or constructive obligation-as a result of past evests, and it is
piobable that an.ouiflow of resourdes embaodying cconomic benefits will bé required to settle the-abligation and a feliable
estimate of the amourit of obligation can be made.
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3.  Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
Share capital

Share capital

Oudinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attributabie to the fssue of new shares; other than on 2 business
c¢ombination; are sliown as. a-deducton from the proceeds in equity. Any excess of thie fiir valne of consideration redeived
over the par valne of shates issued is recognised as additional paid-in- cipital.

Dipidends

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity at the reporting date only if they are declated before or on
the reporting date. Dividends are disclosed when they are proposed before the teporting date or proposed ot declired after
ibe reporting date bat hefore the financial statements areranthorised for issue.

Recognition of income and éxperises

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and ﬂlc‘.J:cvenu_c- can
be teliably measured. The following specific recognition critetia must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Tuterest and simifar-revenne and expense

The Baak calculates interest revenue on debt financial asscts measuted.at amortised cost o at FVOCI by applying the BIR to
the gross cartying amount of financial asséts other thin crédit-impaited assets; BIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments. or receipts thitough the expected life of the financial instrument or @ shorter period, where appropidate,
to the net cartying amount of the financial asset or financial h'lblhty.

The calculation takes into-account all contractual terms-of the financial instrument (fm: emrnple, prepayment options) and
includes any fees or incremental costs. that ate dir(.ctly attributable to the instrument and are an'integral pact of the effective
intterest rate, buit not future credit losses. The carrying 7 amount of the. financialagset o ﬁmucml liability is 1d]ustcd if the Bank
revises its estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted cartying amount is calculated based on' the original effective inferest:
rate and the changein carrymg amount is recorded as inferest revenue or eXpense;

When a financial assct beéomes credit: 11npmxed the Bank calculates interest revenue hy applying the effcctive interest fate to
thie net amortised cost of the financial asset, If the financial assets eures and is né longer credit-impaited, thie Bank reverts to
cq}culatmg nlerest revenue on a gro%.b%lq.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, the Bank calculates interest revenue by caleulating
the creditadjusted EIR and applyiiig that rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The credit-adjusted EIR is the interest rate
that, at ‘ofiginal recognition, discounts the estimated future cash flows (including credit losses) to the amortised cost of
the POCI assets.

Fee aud compnission tncame

The Bank carns fie ind commission:income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers. Fee incomecan he
divided into the following two categories:

Tiee invonie earned fiom services that ate provided goer a cortain priod of tinte:

Fees earned for the provision of services over a penod of time are accrued over that pcﬂod as tespective performance
obligations ate satisfied. These items include commission income and fees for issuance of guar’mtcew and: letters. of credit.
Loan commitment fees forloans that ate likely to be drawn down and other credit related fees are deferved (together with any
incremental costs) and recognised as an adjustrent to the effective intesest rate on the loan.

Fez inconie from providing transacionn sérities

Fees and comimission atising from settlément transactions, transactons with cash and ofhef services are recognised on.
completion of the undetlying trausaction. Fees or components | of fees that are linked to 2 cesrain petfotmance are recognised
after fulfilling the corresponding criteria.

12
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3.  Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation

“Thé finanicial statemerits are presented in Kyrgyz Som, which is the Bank’s functional and proseatation éurreney. Transac’ﬁbns.
in foreign »_::urr_enr':_i_és- ‘are initiaily recorded in’ the functional currency, converted at the rate of 'exch_:ir‘_)ge rulmg at the date of
the transa¢tion, Monetary assets and liabilities ‘denominated in foreign currencies ave tétranslared atr the funcdonal currency.
rate of exchange ruling at the reporfing dite. Gains and losses tesulting from the translation-of foreign currency transactions
are recognised in the statement of profit or Joss and other co‘mptchemivc ‘income as gains less losses from foreign currencies.
~ translation differences. Non-monciary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in aforcign curtency ate tanslated
using the exch.mgt, rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. 1\10n~monelary itemns measured: at fair value in a Iorelgn
currency are translated using the exch.mgr.. rates at the date when the fair value was dctenmm.d

Differences between the contratnial: c'xc]i.lhgt. rate of a transaction in a fmmgn currency and the NBKR exchange rate on
the date 6f the transaction are included in ner gains from. foreign currencies dealing. The official NBKR exchiange ratés at
31 Deceinber 2024 and 31 December 2023, were 87.0'som and 89:0853 som to 1 USD, respectively.

Standards issued but not yet effective
The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effectiﬁve,__ upta the-date of issuance of the

‘Bank’s. financial sttements ate disclosed below. The Bank intends to adopt these new and amended stanidards and
interpretations; if applicable, when thiey become effective,

TERS 18 Presentation and Dischooure in Finangial Statements

In April 2024, the 1ASB issued IFRS 18, which replaces TAS 1 Preseutation of Financial Statements. 1FRS 18 introduces new
r{.quire'ments for presentation within the statement of profit or loss, including specified toials and subtotals. Furthermore,
entities are Leqmﬂ,d to Cl.l%lf} all income and expenses within the statement of profit or loss into one of five categories:
operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discoritinued operations, whereof the first three are new,

It also requites disclosure of newly defined m‘m'lgi.ment—d{,ﬁﬁ(,d performance measures, subtotals of ihcome and expenses,
and includes new requirements for aggfegation and disaggtegation of financial inforniation based on the identified ‘roles’ of
the primary financial statesients (PFS) and the notes.

In addition, natrow-scope amendments have been made to IAS 7 Statensent of Cash Fipivs, which include changing the statting
poiat for determining cash fows from operations-under the indirect method, from profit or loss™ to ‘operating profit oz loss
and removing, the optionality around classification of cash. flows from dividends and interest. Th- additon, there are
consequential amendments to several other standards.-

IFRS 18, and the amendments to. the other standards, is effecttve for reporting periods beginning on ot after 1 ‘]'anuary 2027,
but earlict applieation is permitted and must be disclosed. IFRS 18 will apply tetrospectively:

The Bank is currently working to idéntify all impacts the amendments will have o the primary financial stateinénts and rfotés
1o the Gnancial statemenits.

Amendmenis to the Classification and Measrrement of Finanelal Instrnments—Anmendments fe IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

On 30 May 2024, tie TASB issued Amendments to IFRS ¢ and IFRS 7, Amendments to the Classification’ avid Medsyreament of
Financial Insivuments (the Amendments), The Amendmerits include:

. A clatification that a financial Tiability is derecognised on the ‘scttlement date’ and introduce an acconnting policy
choice (if specific conditions are met) to derecognise financial Liabilities setiled using an electronic payment system
before the settlement darc,

. Additional guidance on how the contractual cash flows for financial- assets with envitonmental, social and corporite
governance (ESG} and similar features should be assessed;

L) Clarifications on what censfitiite ‘non-récourse. featuies’ and ‘what are the ¢haricteristics of contractually Jinked
instumnents;
. The introduectdon of disclosires: for financial instruments with contingerit featutes and. additiondl disclosure

requirements. for equily instiurnents classified at fair value through other comprehénsive income (OCD).

%)
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3. Summary of material accounting policies {continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective(continued)

Ameirdments 16 the Classification aud Measurement of Financial Instrumonto—Ameidpents 1o IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 (wontinned)

The Amendmenzs are effective.for annual periods starting on orafter 1 January 2026. Early adoption is permitted, with an
option 10 early adopt the amendments for clssification of financial assets and 1clatcd disclosures only, The Bank is currently
not mtt,ndmg te eatly adopt the Amendments.

Laek of exchangealitlity = Amendments to LAS 21

In August 2023, the LASBE issucd amendments to 1A8'21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates t0 specify how
an -eatity should assess whether a éutrency is udmngeable and how it should defermine 4 §pot exchange rate when
exchanpealility is lacking, The-amendments also require dis¢losurce of information that enables users.of its financial statemcnds
to understand.how the currency not being exchangeable into the other curtency affects, of is-expected to-affect, the.entity’s
financial performance, financial position and cash flows, The amendments will be effective for annwal réporting petiods
beginning on or aficr 1 January 2025. Barly adoption is permitied but will need to be disclosed. When applying the
amendmerits, an éntity cannot restate-compagative information.

The amendinents aré not expectid © have 2 material imipact on the Banl's financial statemmierits.

TFRS 19 Subsidiaries withant Public Avconnlability: Dischsires

It May-2024, thie TASB issncd IFRS 19, which allows eligible-entities to elect to apply its teduced disclosure requirements
while still applying the récognition, measarement and presentation requirements in other IFRS accounting stindards. To. he
cligible,. at the eénd of tlie teporting pciiod, an catity must he a subsidiary as defined in IFRS 10, cannot have public
accountability ‘and must have a pareat (ultimaté or intermediate) that prepares consolidated financial statements, available for
public use, which comply with TFRS accounting standards.

IFRS 19 will become effective for repotting petiods beginning on or after 1 Janoary 2027, with early application permitted.

As the Bank’s does not have a parent {ultimate ot intermediaze) that prepares consolidated financial statements, it is not eligible.
to elect to apply T FRS 19,

4, Significant accounting judgments-and estimates

Estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Bank’s' accounging policies, management has uséd its judgments and made estimiates. in
determining the amousts u.cognﬁed in the finaricial statements. Themest significant use of judgments and estimates ate as
follows:

Impairment losses on financialarsets

The measurement of allowance for ECL across all catégorics of ﬁnancml assefsrequires judgcmcnl in particular, the-estimation
of the-amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when deterniining imipairment losses and the assessment
ofa slgmﬁcmt_mcrmse in credir sisk. These. cstimates are drived by a number of factors, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances.

The Bank’s BCL C'llcul’mons are outputs of complex: models with 2 number of underlying assumptions 1eg'lrc{u1g the choice
of variable inputs. and their n1tuclcpcndcm.les Hlements of the ECL models thataic considered accountmg ludgcments aiid
estimates include:

] The Bank’s criteria for .lsscssmg if there has been a: significant increase in credit tisk and so allowances for financial
asséts.should be measured.on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

. The se;gm_cn_ta_t_mn of financial dssets when their ECLis assessed on-a collectiye basis;
s Development of BCL maodels, including the various formulae and the choice of inputs;
. Deétermination of associations between macroccononiic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment levels

and eollatéral vahies, and the effect on PDs, EADs.and L6 s,

) Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios arid their probability wughtlngs 16 deiive the economic inputs.
into the ECL. madels,
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4.  Significant accounting judgments and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Lgaser — extimating the incresmental borrowiing rate

The ]3'1nk cannot readily determine the interest rate implici¢ in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental hoerowing rate (IBR)
to measurc lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Bank would have to pay to borrow.over a similar ferm, and
with 2 similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of asimilar value to the 11ght~of‘usr: asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Bank ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when ne observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when they need 1o be adjusted to
reflect the tetrns and conditions of the lease (for eximple, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).

The Bank estimates the IBR using inferest rates on ferm deposits-of its customers.

5.  Net interest income

Netinterest income coinprises:

2024 2023
Interest income calculated using the effective interest rate
Loaris to customers 2,941,607 2115974
Cash and cash equivalents 573,984 904,606
Amounts due from credit institutions 437,258 D81,636
Tnvestment scoutitics:ac amortised cost 219,463 72,046
Total interest income. 4,172,312 3374262
Interest expense
Amounts dué fo customers (901,992) {653,674)
Othet hotiowed funds (152,737 (119,860)
Lease liabilitdes (Nose 76) " (15,007) (15,720}
Total interest expense {1,069,736) (789,254)
Net intetest income 3,102,576 2,585,008

6.  Credit loss expense

‘The tahle below shows the ECL charges on financial instruments recorded in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive inconte fot the year ended 31 December 2024:

Stage 1 Srage 2 Stage 3 POCT Toral
Cash and cash equivalents (Ne# 77) 1,736 ) - - 1,727
Amouats due from credit institutions (Ne#. 72} 29,698 - - - 29,698,
Loans to customers (Nate 13) (58,785)  (122,698)  (34,876)  (10,446) (226,805)
Iavestment securities at amortised cost (Note 74) (35,485) - - = (35,485)
Other findndial assets (Noke. 17) ' = - (3,567) - (3,567)
Loan commitments.and financial guarantees (Nt 23) (6,000) 588 (51,404) - (56,816)
T'otal credit loss cxpense. (62,836)  (122,119)  (89,847)  (10,446) (285,248)

The table below shows the ECL charges on financial instruments tecorded in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprebensive income for the yeat ended 31 Decémber 2023:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 ' POCT Total
Cash and cash equivalents (No/ 11) _ (2577 1,928 - - (649}
Amounts due from credit institutions (Nofe 1.2} (48,885) - - - {48,885)
Loans to.customers (Note 13 31,137 (78,299 (14,549) - (61,711)
Investment securities at ammu%d cost (No nte 14) (_9,0_15)_ — - - ('9,0'1-5_)
Other financial assets (Noze 17) = - 12,319 - 12,319
Loan commitments and financial guarantecs (Note23) 841 3,375 - - 4216
Total credit loss expense (28,499) (72,996) (2,230) - {103,725)
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Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC Notes to 2024 financial statéments.

(in thonsands of Kyrgyz Som)

7. Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission intome comptises:

2024 2023
Fee and commission income
Plastic card ‘services 502,765 566,921
Settlement aperations 309,717 331,911
Cash operations 213,814 328,154
Account opefiing and maintenance 64,443 79,398
Guarantees and letters of creelic 50,202 53,839
Processing 26,868 16,739
Factoring . 4,293 2,215
Other 15,069 16,943
Total fee and commission income 1,187,171 1,396,120
Fee and commission expense _
Plastic card services (_52_'[},760) {526,173)
Cash operations (135,845) {53,671)
Settlement operations {(95,808) {120,222y
Other _ (29,186) {23,517)
Total fee -and commission-expense {781,599) (723,583
Net fee and commission income _ 405,572 672,537

The Bank’s revenue from contiacts with customers is mostly represented. by fee and ‘commission income.

The Bank usually collects fees and commissions in advance of completion of the underlying transaction or shortly thereafier
(for contracts where performance obligation is satisficd point in time, such as setilement and cash operations). For services
provided over time (such as those related to sccount maintenance), the Bank vsually charges upfront monthly, quartetly or
annual fees covering respective portion of the overall contract petiod.

Thé Bank applies the practical .expédient in paragraph 121 of TERS 15 and does siot disclose informaton about temaining
performance obligations that have original expected durations of one year or Jess.

8.  Other operating income

Other operating income comprises:

2024 2023
Income from sale of tepossesséd collateral 23639 63,898
Reimburseinent of expenses. 3,815 10,939
Gaii ffom: derecogrition of lease liabilites 2,344 5818
Other : 7,173 2,107
Total other operating income _ 36,971 82,762
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Notes to 2024 financdial statements

(in thowsands of Kyrgys; Soni)

9.  Personnel and other operating expenses

Persannel and other operaling expenses comprise:

Employee compensation
Payroll related taxes
Personnel expenses.

Depreciation and amortisation (Notz 15, 16)
Repair and maintenance

Deposit insurance

Security

Represenm tion and corporaie events
Professional services

Advertising and marketing
Communication and informafion services
Iincashment services

Insurance

Lesdse

Inventoty write-off

Utilities

Travel expenses

Charity and sponsorship

Staff teaining

Office supplies

Taxes other than income tax

Othet

Other operating expenses

2024 2023
948,668 833,537
158,880 138,410

1,107,548 971,947
303,582 284,746
127,543 111,812

85,738 78,531
55,751 56,148
50,682 41,688
46,901 46,180
41,511 31,522
40,234 40,408
25,368 30,960
14,599 25,581
13,726 10,325

9,621 8,390

9,260 7,310

7,807 5,211

7,115 9,414

4,706 13,000
3,644 3414
563 556
38,631 32,940
886,982 828,136

For the year ended 31 December 2024 amount of audit and non-audit fees charged to the Bank'by all EY member practices
amounted to KGS 16,152 thousand and KGS 262 thousand,  excluding VAT, respectively (31 December 2023:

KGS 16,741 thousand #nd KGS 293 thousand; excluding VAT, respectively).

10. Taxation

The corporate income 14X expense conipgises:

Current tax charge
Adjustment of corporate income tax of poor periods

Deferred tax charge — oﬁ'giimi_:ion and reversal of 'temp_oraty differences

Income tax expense

2024 2023
205,655 283479
- (7,531
38,312 6,985
243,967 282,933

Statutory corporate income tax tate for companies (including banks) in the Kyrgyz Republic comprised 10%:for-2024 and

2023,

17
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(fn thowsands of Kyrgy Som)

10, Taxation (continued).

Aecording, to_the Tax. Code of the Kyrgyz Republic for the computation of taxable profit, the Bank is entitled to deducr
allowance for impairment for loans to customers. and foreclosed asscts from the aggregated annual income, 1ccmed in
accordance with the Regulation *Qn classification of assels aud tespective allocations to the provision. for  polential losses? “approved by the
Resolution: of the Management Board of the NBKR No.18/3 dated 21 July 2004 {fast revised on 4 December 2024) and
Regulation “On cerfain travisactions/ aperations with real estate of the- commersial banks and microfinance companries of the Kygye Republic”

apptoved by the Resolution of the Man agement Board -of the NBKR No. 36/2 dated 29 August. 2012 (last revised on
17 Januaty 2024).

The effective income tax rate differs from the statutory income tax rate. A reconcilidtion of the income tax expense based on
the statutoty rate with actual is as follows:

2024 2023
Profit before income tax 2,314,316 2,761,979
Statdtory tax rite 10% 10%
Theoretical income tax expensc at the statutory tate 231,432 276,198
Provisions - 3,044
Other permanent differences 12,535 3,691
Income tax:expense _ 243,967 282,933

Deferted tax assets and Jiabilifics as of 31 December.and theix movements for the respective years comprise:

Origination Origination
and reversal and reversal
af temporary of temporary
differences-in différences in
F1 Deceraber protit 31 December af pra'ﬁ_r 31 December
2022 orloss 2023 or loss. 2024,
Loans to customaers (25,755) (7,472 {33,227) (30,483) (63,710)
Property, cquipment and intangible _ ' '

-agseds ' 737 1,933 2,670 (2,022) 648
Right-of-use-assets (36,468) 2070 (34,398) 75 (33,623)
Foreclusid assets (12,167) 13,926 (82413 2,489 (5,752)
Lease liabilities 37,636, (1,859) 35,777 (0,277 34,500,
Amounts duc to eustomers 6,184 (6,184 - - -
Other borrowed funds (31 31 - (8,131) (8,151)
Othet 1,319 70 1.889 337 2,226
Deferred tax liability (28,545) (6,983) {35,530) (38,312) (73,842)
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(in thonsands of Kyrgig, Som)

11.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and ‘cash equivalents, comprise:

31 December 31 Deceraber
2024 2023

Cash on hand 3,869,855 5,551,020
Nostro accounts with the NBKR rated BB 6,645,374 4,953,690
Allowance for ECL _  (1,236) (1,028)
Total nostre accounts with the NBKR 6,644,138 4,952,662
Nostro accovnts with otlier hanks:
- rated from AA- to AA+ 9,861 -
- rated from.A-to A+ 301,879 1,143,456
- tated BBB- to BBB+ 1,883,103 1,609,699
- tated from BB- to BB+ 1,406,576, 412,491
- tated from B- to B+ 161,312 5,662
- not rated 156,534 248,981.
Allowance for ECL: _ (433) {538)
Total nosteo accounts with other banks _ 3,918,832 3,419,751
Term deposits up t6 3 months with the NBKR tated B 500,054 -
Allowance for ECI, (248) -
Total term deposits up to.3 months with the NBKR . 499,806 -
Term .d_e_p‘.r_}s'its up 10 3 months with other banks:
_ rated BBB- to BBB+ 10,468,640 6,858,159
- 116 rated . 249,276 -
Allowance for BCL 209) (102)
‘Total term deposits up. to 3 months with other banks 10,717,707 6,858,057
Notes-of the NBKR, rated B, dp to 3 months - 3,287,501
Allowance for ECL ' - (8,244)
Total notes of the NBKR up to 3 months - 3,279,257
Total cash and cash equivalents 25,650,338 24,060,747

"The:credit ratings are presented by reference to the credit tatings of Standard & Péor’s credit rating agency ot analogies of
sitnitat internationsl agencies. '

Asat 31 :Dcccmb_cr-.2024 nosteo accounts with other baiks without rating include 2amounts due from Bank IBA-Moscow LLC
(KGS 102,940 thousand), RNKO Payment Center (IKGS 51,821 thousand) and Moscow branch of Solid Bank, JsC KGs
1,773 thousand). As at 31 December 2023 nostio aceourits with othet banks without fating include amounts duce from Credit
Europe Bank (Russia) Ltd. (KGS 201,592 thousand) and RNKO Payment Center (KGS 47,389 thousand).

As ar 31 December 2024 time deposits with other banks up to. 3. months ‘withiout fafing include amiounts due from
Bank IBA - Moscow LLC {KGS 249,276 thousand). As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, exposures to banks which have no
rating arc allocated to Stage 2 for ECL medsurement purposes.

As 2t 31 Decembier 2024 and 2023, minimal reserve requitements of thé NBKR. amounted to KGS 3,959,011 thousand and
KGS 3,217,964 thousand, respectively. The obligatory teserves are placed on cirrent accounts with the NBKR. The Bank’s
ability to withdraw such accounts is not restricted by the Kyrgyz legislation,

As at 3_1'_Deccﬁ1bt_‘;r 2024, the Bank has atcoints with two banlks. (31 'De_cember 2023: three baﬁks}, other than the NBKR,
whose balances individually exceed 10% of the Bank’s equity. The total gross value of these balances as at 31 December 2024
amounted to KGS 12,190,364 thousand. (31 Decembet 2023: K(G58,734,705 thousand),
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11. Cash and cash equivalents {continued)

Afranalysis of changes in the 1CL allowance dusing the year ended 31 December 2024 is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Total
ECL as at 1 Januaty _ 9,516 396 9,912.
(Reversal) / charge for the yeat (Note 6) (7,736) 9 (7,727)
Foreign exchange adjustments ' 2) {57) (59)
As at 31 December 1,778 348 2,126
An analysis of c'.'lmn'ges_in the ECL allowance durﬁl_g-__ihc. year-einded 31 Deceinber 2023 as follows:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Total
ECL as at 1 January 6,937 2,300 9,237
Chatge / (reversal) for the year (Nute 6) 2,577 {1,928 649,
Foreign exchange adjustments 2 24 2
As.at31 December 9,516 296 9,912
12. Amounts due from credit institutions
Amounts due from credit institutions comprise;
31 Décember 31 December
2024 2023
Time deposits for more than 3 months with other banks:
- rated from AA- to AA+ 259,819 244140
~rated: BBB 1,206,747 308,927
- rated from BB- to BB+ 3,032,262 269,876
- rited from B+ to B- 3,666,708 5,838,848
- not tated 385,297 90,394
Time deposits for mofe than -3 months with the NBIKR. rated B 47,098 45418
8,567,931 6,797,603
Allowanec for TLCL (32,7606) (62,232
Amounts due fiom credit ingtitntions 8,635,165 6,735,371

The credit. ratings are présented by reference to the credit ratings of Standard & Poor’s eredit rating agency or analogues of

simildi-international agencies.

Asat 31 Decembes 2024 time deposits with credit institutions without raﬁng_ include amounts dué from IFIN CA Bank C_]S__C'

of KGS 355,297 thousand (31 December 2023: KGS 90,394 thousand).

As at 31 December 2024, the Bank has time deposit with one bank (31 Decémber 2023: two banks), whose balances
individually exceed 10% of the. Bank’s equity: The gross value of thiese balarices as. at.31 December 2024 amounted. to

KGS 1,044,730 thousand (31 December 2023: KGS 2,164,083 thousand).

Asat 31 December 2024 and 2023, amounts due from credit institutions of KGS 47,098 thousand and KGS 45418 thousand,

respectively, represent insurance deposits for opetations in money transfer systems with the NBKR.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, all amoints due from: crédit institutions are allocated to Stage 1 for ECL measurement

PUIpOses.
An analysis of changes in the EClL allowance dusing.the year ended 31 December is as follows:

2024 2023
As at 1 Januaty 62,232 13,763
(Reversdl) /charge for the year (No#i 6) (29,698) 48,885
Foréign exchange ddjisunéents 232 {416)
As 2t.31 Decembet 32,766 62,232
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(in thonsands of Kyrgyzy Som)

13. Loans to customers

Losns to énstomeérs comprise:

31 December 31 Décember
2024 2023
Loans to corpafate customers 24,072,340 17,861,597
Loans to small and medium entetprises (SME) 2,452,091 1,881,342
Loans to retail customers:
- Morfgage loans 1,628,344 1,224,029
- Consumer loans 1,296,178 841,880
» Credit cards 345,795 307,064
Total loans to tetail customeis 3,270,317 2,372,973
Total gross loans to customers 29,794,748 22115912
Allowance for ECL _ {702,919) (457,018)
Loans to customers. 29,091,829 21,658,894

As at 31 December 2023 loans 1o customers with carrying amount of KKGS 5,121 thousand are pledged as collateral for the
borrowings recetved {rom Russian-Kyigyz Development Fund (Noze 26).
Allowance for ECL on loans to customers

An an_alys_is_.qf changes in the gross. c'._lr_ryi:ng'wluc in telation to loans to-customers during the year ended 31 December. 2024
tz-as follows: '

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 rocr Total

Gross carrying value as at.1 January 2024 20,502,602, 494,971 1,118,339 - 22,115,912
New assets originated or purchased 21,088,286 - - 1,060,200 22,148,486
Assets repaid (13,749,857) (295,291)  (267,333) {7,382).  (14,319,863)
Transfers to Stage 1 668,538" (668,538) - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (2,848,857) 3,079,680 {230,823) - -
Transfers 1o Stage 3 (51,845) (913,100) 964,945 - -
Changes to contractunl eash flows due 1o

modifications not xesulting in derécognition - - (23,358) (23,358)
Unwinding of discount - - 31,161 = 3,161
Amounts written off - - {480) - (480)
Foreign exchange adjustments (121,436) (2,136) (17,168) 16,370)  (157,110)
As at 31 Décember 2024 25,487,431 1,695,586 1,575,283 1,036,448 29,794,748
An analysis of changes in the ECL in reldtion to loans to.customers during the year ended 31 December 2024 is as follows:
Loans to corporate customers Stige 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCY Total
ECL as at1 January 2024 56,523 46,170 114,962 - 217,655
New assets originated or purchased. 62,045 - - - 62,045
Assets répaid (39,416) (13,880)  (17,386) - (70,682)
Transfers to Stage 1 46,116 (46,116). - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (28,862) 28,862 - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 ' - (73,147} 73,147 - -
Impact on pedod end ECL of exposures

transferred betweed stages during the-period

and changes to models and inputs used for

ECL caleulations 6,161 77,722 38,296 10,446 132,625
Uritvinding of discount - - 26,697 - 26,697
Amiourits writtén off - - - - -
Foreign exchange adjustments (7,479) (22) (2,870) (82) (10,453)
As at’31 December 2024 95,088 19,589 232,846 10,364 357,887

21



Demir Kyrgyz International Bink CJSC

Nates to-2024 financial statements

(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

13. Loans to customers (continued)

Allowarice for ECL on loans to.customets (continued)

Loans to SME

ECL as at 1 January 2024

New assets originated or-purchased

Assers repaid

T'ransfers to Stage 1

Transtess to Stage 2

Transfers fo Stage 3

Impact on period end ECL of exposures transferred between
stages during the perod and changes to. models and inputs used
for ECL calculations '

Unwinding of discount

Amounts wiiften off

Foreign exchange adjustments

As at31 December 2024

Mortgage loans

ECLasatl January 2024

New asstts originated or purch_':{scd'

Assets répaid

“Transfers 1o Stage 1

Transfeis to. Stage 2

“T'ransfers o Smge 3

Impaet on perdod end ECILL of exposures transfetred between
stages during the pedod and changes-to models and inputs used
for ECL. caleulations

Unwinding of discount

Amonints written off”

Foteign exchange adjustments

As it 31 December 2024

Consumeér loans

ECL as at1 January 2024

New-assels originated or purchased

Assets repaid

Transfess to Stage 1

Transfers fo Stage 2-

Transfers to Stage 3

Imipact on period énd BCL of exposures tiansferied between
stages during the period-and changes 1o inodels and inputs nsed
for BCI, caleulations -

Unwinding of discount

Amounts writfen off

Foreign exchange adjustments

As'at 31 D¥ecember 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
18,635 16,147 96,093 130,875
36,523 - - 36,523
{25,843) ~ (658) (34,738) (61,239)
17,094 (17,094) - -
(6,394) 8,323 (1,929) -
- (10,385) 10,385 -
8,772 11,895 36,495 57,162
- - 2,311 2,311
{102) - {479) (581)
48,685 8,228 108,138 165,051
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3. Total
11,392 1,163 23,689 136,244
14,605. - ~ 14,605
(8,330) (897) (7,416) (16,643)
24,714 (24,714) - -
(11,962) 12,291 {(329) -
- (15,144) 15,144 -
(2,290) 31,102 7,230 36,042
= - 547 547
- - (422) (422)
(16) 177 (190 (383)
28113 3,624 38,253 69,990
Stage Srage 2 Stage 3 Total
6,985 2,450 20,815 30,250
26,829 - - 26,829
(19,987) (3,639) (34,024). (57,650)
17,953 (17,953) - -
(5,265) 5,824 (559) -
(5) (3,794) 3,799 -
(6,549) 19,154 42,278 54,883
s - 539 539
» = (36) (36)
(14) -(142) (12} (168)
19,947 1,908 32,780 54,627
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13. Loans to customers (continued)

Allowance for ECL on loans fo customers {continited)

Credit cards Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL as at 1 January 2024 3,856 933 37,205 41,994
New assets otiginated ot purchased 10,184 - - 10,184
Assets repaid (7,151) (3,390) (15,782) (26,323)
I'tansfers to Stage 1 3,221 (3,221) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (3,564) 3,564 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 21) (2,032) 2,053 -
Impact on period end BECL of exposures transferred between

‘stages during the period-and changes to'modelsand inputs

used for ECL calculations 3,232 5,289 19,923 28,444
Unwinding of discount - - 1,067 1,067
Amanints wriiten off - - @) 2)
Poreign exchange adjustments - - - —
As at 31 December 2024 9,757 1,143 44,464 55,364

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying value in relation to loans to customers durng the year ended 31 December. 2023

is.a5 follows:

Stage f Stage 2. Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying value.as at 1 Januarty 2023 12,326,090 317,856 1,464,386 14,108,332
New asscéts onginated or puichased 19,138,710 - - 19,138,710
Assetsrepaid ) (10,736,286). (285,407 (331,061) (11,352,754
Transfers to Stage'1 617412 {617,015 (397) -
Trarisfers. to Stage 2 (1,021,069 1,305,974 {284,905y -
Transfers to Stdge 3 [EX ) (231,87¢6) 269,253 -
Changes to contractusl cash flows due to medificitions not ' '
resulting in derecognition, - - (2,668} (2,668)
Unwinding of discount - - 13,782 13,782
Amounts wiitfen off - - (21,320 (21,3200
Foreign exchange adjustments 215122 5,439 11,269 231,830
As at 31 Decémber 2023 20,502,602 494,971 1,118,339 22:115,912

Am analysis of 'changes in the ECL in relation i loans to customers during the year einded 31 Dieceriber 2{]23..35.:13- folIoWs:

Loans to corporate customers Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL as.at 1 January 2023 95,545 768. 140,024 '2_3'6,33?
New assets originated or putchased 108,615 - - 108,615
Assets repaid (58,054) (10,239 (32,349) (100,642)
Transfers to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (6,474) 8,694 (2,220 -
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - -
Impact on petiod-end ECL. of exposures transfersred between

stages during the period and changes to models and inputs

used for ECL calculations ' {83,387) 46,720 16,171 (20,496)
Unwinding of discount - -~ 6,288 6,288
Amiounts written off - - (14,304) (14,304)
Foteign exchange adjustments _ 278 227 1,352 1,857
As at 31 Decembér 2023 _ 56,523 46,170 114,962 217,655
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13. Loansto customers (continued)

Allowance for ECL on loans to customers {continued)

Loans to SME

ECLasat1 Jannary 2023

New assets onginated or purchased

Assets repaid

"Fransfers to Stage 1

‘Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3 _

'l'mpact on petiod end KCL of exposures transferred between
:_;tage_s__-duri"ng the period and changes to models and.inputs‘used
for ECL calculations

Unwinding of discount

Amounts writien off

Foseign exchange adjustments.

As.at 3t D'ecem'be)_: 2023

Mortgage loans

ECL as at 1 January 2023

Neéw agsets origimsited or putchased.

Asséts tepaid

Transfeis to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers fo Stage &

Imipact on perod end ECL of exposures fransferred between
stages during the period and changes to niadels and inputs used
for ECL calciations. '

Unwinding of discount

Amounts written off

Forelgn exchange adjustments

As at 31 December 2023

Consumer loans

ECL as-at 1 January 2023

New assets originated or purchased

Assets repaid

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on pedod end ECL of exposutes transferred between
stages during the period and changes to models and inputs used
for ECL- calculations:

WUnwinding of discount

Amounts writteri off

Foreign exchange adjastirents

As at 31 December 2023

Stage 7 Stage_Z Stage 3 Total
25,846 11,424 43,532 80,802
21,938 - - 21,938
(15,064 (11,803) (14,3109 41,177

6,366 (6,366) - -
(14,786) 21,457 (6,671) -
- {36,598). 36,598 -
(5,841) 37,653 33,247 65,059
- - 3,228 3,228

176 380 469 1,025
18,635 16,147 96,093 130,875
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stagre 3 Total
5,514 1,078 22,300 28,892
6,308 = - 6,308
(3,390 (1,332) {10,861) (15,583)
3,872 {3,872) - -
(2:729) 3,652 (923) -
- (3,017 3,017 =
1,853 4,654 8,842 15,349
- - 1,372 1372
(36) - (58) (94)

11,392 1,163 23,689 36,244

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Toral
6,195 4,553 10,806 21,554
6,564 - - 6,564
(5:673) (2,889) (8,770) (17:332)
12,868 (12,683) (185) -
(5,912) 6,381 {469) -
) (6,332) 6,339 -
(7.070) 13,420 18,495 24,845
- - 1,586 1,586

- = (7,016) (7,016)

20 - 29 49
6,985 2,450 20,815 30,250
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13. Loans to customers (confinued)

Allowance for ECL on loans to customers {continued)

Credit caeds Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL as:at 1 Jahuaty 2023 2,695 572 29,156 32,423
New assets n'ﬁgii}.atéd.'or purchased 5091 — - 5,091
Assets repaid 3,794y {2,126) (8,261) (14,181)
Transfers to Stage 1 2,605 (2,605) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 {3,508) 4,085 (377 -
“Fransfers to Stage 3 - (3,234) 3,234 -

Impact on petiod end ECL of exposures transféried bierween
stages duting tlie period and changes 16 modéls.and fnputs used

for ECL calculations 767 4,241 12,345 17,353
Unwinding of discotmt - - 1,308 1,308
Amounts wiitten off - - - -
Foreign exchange adjustments - - - -
As at 31 December 2023 3,856 933 37,205 41,994

During 2024 the Bank has performed an analysis of macra. economical factors and forwsrd- -looking informition used fot
caleulation of ECL on loans to. customers. Based on the analysis the Bank Js reconsidered composition of macro economical
factors based -on significance of their impact on - default plob'lbihry forecast. More detuils about the forward- -looking
informiation used for ECL assessment 15 at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are disclosed in N 22,

In 2024 the Bank dcclded to remove forecasted PI3 zates aiid seasonalify trends applied as at 31 December 2023, which
resulted in a decrease in ECL allowance.on loans fo customers by KGS 43,207 thousand.

Modified and restructured loans

The Bank derecognisés a financial asset, such as i 16an-to a chstomer, when the ferms and conditions have been renegotiated
to the extent that, substantially; it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised a5 a derecognition gain ot loss, to the
extent that 4ii impaitmient loss has not alieady béen recorded: The newly recognised loans are classified-as Stage 1 for ECL
measutement purposes, unless the new loan is‘deémed to be POCL

If the modifiention does. not resvlt in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in
derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows. discounted at the original effective intetest rate, the Bank records a
modification gain of loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not alre: ady been-recorded.

The table lielow includes asscis that wete modified during 2024 and 2023, with the related modification loss suffered by the
Banlk.

202¢ 2023
Loans modified during thic period
;j.\rno ttised cost before.modification 377,733 391,050
Net modification. Ioss (23,358) (2,668)
Loans modified since initial recognition 354,375 388382

Collateral

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit sk of the counterparty. Guidelines are
implemented regarding, the acceptability of types of collateral anid valuation patameters.

“The main.types of collateral obtained are as follows:
L] For cothmercidl lending, charges over teal cstate properties, motor vehicles, equipment and iiwe_ntory;
° For retail lending; morigages over residential properties.

‘\fI'ulag(.ment monifors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accordance with the undetlying
agrecmient, and monitors the market value of collateral obtained duting its review of the adequacy of the allowance for
-expected credit losses.

Re-appiaisal of the collateral takes place once in 12 months or if obvious signs of collateral detetioration exist:
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13. Loans to customers (continued)

Collateral {contiiiued)

In absence of collateral of otlier credit enhancements, ECL in respect of Stage 3 and POCI loans to customers as. at
31 December 2024 and 2023 would have been highei Ly:

2024 2023
Loans to corporate customers 155,541 53,202
Loans to SME 75,674 54,285
Mortgage loans 69,968 24,589
Consumer loans 4,887 3,140
306,071 135,216

Repassessed collateral

During the year ended 31 Diecember 2024, the Bank obtained certain asscts by taking possession of collateral for loans to
customers with a carrying amount of IKGS 4,582 thousand (2023: KGS 6,707 thousand) and sold repessessed collateral with
a total book value of KGS 31,209 thousand (2023: KGS 63,704 thousand)..

Concentration of loans to customers

As ar31 Decembet 2024 the Bank had twelve lorrowers or groups of telated borrowers (31 December 2023: séven horrowers
or groups of related borrowers) whose lodn balances individually exceed 10% of die Bank’s equity. The total gréss carrying
value of these loans as at 31 December 2024 amounted to KGS 15,668,017 thousind (31 December 2023
KGS 7,824,420 thousand). As at 31 December 2024 allowance for ECL recognised by the Bank on these loans amountéd to
KGS 79,750 thousand (31 Deceriber 2023: KGS 2,192 thousand). ' '

As-at 31 December 2024, the B'mk had a concentration of loans If:ple%ented by K(35 11,505,790 thousand due from the tea
lacgest botrowers or 38, 62% of gross loan pottfolio. (31 December 2023: KGS 9, 079918 thousand or 41.06%), As at
31 December 2024 allowance for impairment of KGS 34,515 thousand (31 December 2023; KGS 1,415 thousand) was
recognised by the Bank on these loans:

An shalysis of the Bank’s credit fisk conceittration: per sector is provided below.

31 Decernber 31 December
Analysis by sector: 2024 2023
Trade 10,981,231 8,843,976
Services 5,663,563 3,927,051
Manufacturing 4,661,188 4,982,276
Construction 4,543,169 1,414,857
Loans to individuals. 3,270,317 2372973,
Other’ 675,280 574,779
Gross loans to customers: 29,794,748 22,115,912
AMlowance for ECL (702,919) (457,018)
Total loans to customets 29,091,829 21,658,894
14. Investmentsecurities at amortised cost
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Treasury honds of the Ministry-of Finance of the Kyrgyz Republic 1,739,704 11,915
Treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance of the Kyrgyz Republic 657,261 _ -
Notes'of the NBKR - 1,128,234
Allowance for RCILL (44,645) (9,160)
Total investment securities at amortised cost 2,352,320 1,120,989

Asat 31 _Dece_mber 2024 investment securities at amortised-cost included treasury bonds -and bills of the l\ﬁnis_try _off Einancc
of the Kyrgyz Republic denominated in KGS with maturity in 2025-2027 and nominal interest rates of 11.0%-16.0%. per
anoum.
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14. Investment securities at amortised cost {continued)

As at 31 Det_:ember 2023 investment securities at-amortised cost included notes of the NBKR d_enomixml‘ed in KGS with
maturity-in 2024 and nominal interest rates 0f 14.8%-15.0% per annum and treasury bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the
Kyrgyz Repulbslic denominated in KGS with maturity in 2026 and: nominal interest rates of 15.0%-16.0% per anaum.

As at 31 December 2024 treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance of the Kyrgyz Republic with total gross carrying valve of
KGS 657,261 thousand were pledged as collateral on doans réceived. from State Development Bark (Nose 26).

Asat 31 December 2023 treasury bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the Kyrgyz Republic with total gress carrying value of
KGS 5,600 thousand were pledged 4s collatersl 6n Joans réceived from Russtan-Kyrgyz Development Fund (Noze 26).

An analysis of changes in.the ECL allowance duging the year ended 31 December is as follows:

2024 2023
As at 1 January 9,160 145
“Charge for the year (Note.6) 35,485 9,015
As-at 31 December 44,645 9,160
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16. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

“Thie Bank lesses office. premises. The.léase pédods vary from 2 to 10 yeass, with an option to extend thié lease i most of the
agreements. For cértain leases, the Banlk is'restricted from entedng into any sili-lease arrangerrients.

Analysts of changes in cattying value of tight-of-use assets-during the yeats ended 31 December is as-follows:

2024 2023

Cost _ _
As at 1 January 445,714 432,911
Modifications 31,286 16,649
Additions 48,105 52,033
Disposals (134,408) (55.879)
As at 31 Decembet 390,697 445,714
Amortisation
As at 1 January 101,731 68,231
Deprecintion for the year 87,163 89,379
Disposals (134,408) (55,879)
As-at 31 Decembet 54,486 101,731
Net book value
As-at 31 Decembet - 336,211 343,983
Analysis of changes in carrying value of lease Labilities during the years-ended 31 December is as follows:

2024 2023
Balance at 1 Januaty 357,769 376,364
Modifications 31,286, 16,649
Additions 48,105 52,033
Interest-accrual (I\; ote 5) 15,007 15,720
Lease payments (99,223) (107,552)
Foreign exchange adjustments (7,947 4,555
Balance at 31 Dieceniber 344,997 357,769

For the year ended :31 Pecember 2024 the total cash outflow for leases amounts to KGS 112949 thousand
{31 December 2023: KGS 117,877 thousand).

17. Otherassets and liahilities

QOther assets comprise:

31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Money transfer receivables 347,167 541,005
Otlici teceivables 233,779 81,286
Allowance for ECILL (21,675) (21,687)
Other financial assets. 589,271 600,604
Prepayments 291,486 181,755
Materials and supplics 85,747 110,277
Foteclosed property 63,104 86,915
Prepaid taxcs ofhier than income tax 6,981 6,460
Othet advances 4,861 3,147
Othernon-financial assets 452,179 388,554
Total other assets. 1,011,450 989,158

In 2024 the Bank has recognised reversal of write-down of foreclosed property tncluded in other impairment and provision
in the. statement of profit or loss and other comprehemwe income in the amount of KG§ 428 thousand (2023:
KGS 19,668 thousand).
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17. Other assets and liabilities (continued)

Movements in the allowance for-JiCL for the year ended 31 December are as. follows:

As-at 1 January

Chatge / (reversal) for the year (Naose 6)
Amounts written-off

Foreign exchange adjistments

As at 31 December

Other liabilities comprise:

Accrued personnel and other operating expenses

Alowarice for ECL for credit related commitments and guarantees (Nate 23)
Subsidies received

"Other financial labilities

‘Total other financial liabilities

‘Taxes ofher thanincome tax payable

Provisions

Other nop-financial liabilities-

Total other non-financial lizbilities.

Total other liabilities.

2024 2023
21,687 33,238
3,567 (12,319
{3,255) (253)
324 1,021
21,675 21,687
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
296,321 290,889
63,717 6,978
- 1,956
21,211 25,010
381,249 324,833
39,173 33,882
- 30,444
38,721 53,575
77,894 117,901
459,143 442,734

Other impairment and provisions for 2023 in the statement of profit ot loss and other t:omprc:hensﬁre incomé inclade
KGS 30,444 thousand provision chatge recognized in relation to'a legal case (Nose 23).

18. Amounts due to banks

Amounts due to banks comprise:

Current accounts of Huropéan Bank for Reconstruction atd Development
Cutrtent accounis of othes banks '
Amounts due to banks

19.  Amounts due to customers

Amounts due to corporate customers
--Carrent accounts and demand deposits
-"T'erm depaosits

Amounts duoe to retail customers
~ Current accounts and demand deposits
~ Term deposits

Total amounts dupe to customers’
Held as security against loans
ITeld ds security against guatantees dnd lettérs of credit (Noz 23)

At 31 December 2024, amounts due 6 customers of KGS 10,290,098 thousand ot 19.57% from total amounts due to

31 Décember 31 December
2024 2023

26,742 26,235

14,363 16,147

41,105 42,382

31 December 31 December
2024 2023
18,516,319 18,516,221
4,810,618 476,698
23,326,937 18,992,919
17,634,588 15,644,090
11,625,519 8,576,906
29,260,107 24,220,996.
52,587,044 43,213,915
137,675 138,458
370,271 345,730

customers.were due to the ten largest customers (31 December 2023; IKGS 4,882,016 thousand or 11.30%),
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19. Amounts due to customers (continued)

In accordance with the Civil Code of the Kyrgyz Republic, the Bank is obliged to repay time-deposits to retail customers upon
demand of a depositor. In case a tetm deposit is repaid upon demand of the depositor Pl‘it}'r-tf) ri’ialuﬂt_y, interést on it is paid:
based on the iiterést rite for demdand deposits, valess a different interest.eate is pecified in the agreement.

Starting from 13 February 2009, the Bank is a palliclp'!l‘it ofthe mandatory system of protcctlon of bank dcpnsltﬂs This system
opemtcs on-the basis of the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic, and its:management 15 carried out by the state organisation

“Agency on the Protection of Deposits of the Kyrgyz Republic”. The deposit protection system. is aimed at proteciing
depositors of banks (individuals and individual entrepreneurs carrying out individual entreprenenrial activities without the
formation of 3 legal entity) upon the occurence of a guasanice cvent, (f'nlure to pay 2 deposit due enforcement of a final court
decision.on forced liquidation or bankruptey of 2 bank, and if the procedure for voluntary Hquidation initiated in accordance
with the Jegistation of the Kyrgyz Republic has been transferred to. the procedure of compulsory hqmda(mﬂ on the grounds
provided by the Law of the Kyrgyz Republic On the Conservation, Liguidation asd Bankruptcy of Banks in ac¢ordance with
the final coutt decision that came into foree} by providing compénsation-in the ameunt of up to 1,000 thousand som for each
individual.

An analysis of the Bank's risk concentration per sector is provided below.

3i-December 31 December
2024 2023
Amalysis by sector:
Services 8,813,307 5,230,221
Ttade 3,677,489 4,607,432
Construction 3,590,459 3,013.9%
Manufacturing 2,121,788 1,611,331
Public funds and chasity organisations: 1,188,471 866,760
lmmpmr and communication 1,023,567 1,049,519
Geology and mining: 695,014 627982
Exterritorial organiﬁﬁti()11 5 523,058 444,030
Toutism 353,904 252,617
Blectricity; gas and water supply 302,295 85,859
State organisations ' 246,593 94,700
Agriculture 126,945 234,052
Culinge and art 85,589 53,021
Other 578,458 821,399
Amounts due to corporate customers 23,326,937 18,992,919
20. Other borrowed funds
Interest  Maturity 31 December 31 December
Counterparty Currency rate dare 2024 2023 -
T00%- - ___
Alyl Bank QJSC EUR, USD 2.50% 2025 1,323,105 1,948,246
Kytgyzstan Bank QJSC EUR 2.00% 2025 1,180,345 -
European Bank for Reconstruction and -8.85%-
Development KGS 16,00%  2026-2028 764,361 248,511
International Finance Corporation KGS 10:45% 2027 519,862 727,861
Fuasian Development Bank UusD 6.00% 2026 437,538 -
State Development Bank KGS: 6.00% 2031 269,610 -
Ministty of Finance of the Kyrgyz 4.25%-
Republic KGS 4.75% 2025 8,724 30,577
2:00%-
State Mottgage Company OJSC KGS 6.00%.  2027-2030 7,968 10,30%
Russian-Kyrgyz Development Fund UsD 1.00% 2024 - 7,934
Total other borrowed funds 4,511,513 2973432
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20. Other borrowed funds (continited)

Aépl Bank OfSC

Asat31 December 2024, the Bank has loans teceived from Aiyl Bank QJSC denominated in USD and.denominated in EUR.
at interest rates of 2.5% per annum and 1.0% per annum, respectively,. and with maturity not exueedmg 13 da}’s
(31 December 2023: denominated in USD and EUR at interest rates of 4.8% per annum and 1.0% per annum, respectively,
and with-maturity not exceeding 13 days).

Kyrgyzatan Bank OJ5C

In November 2024 the Bank recéived funds frem Kyrgysptan Bank O]S'C' “denominated in EUR at: interest rate of 2.0% with
maturity not exceeding 94 days.

Enropean Bant_for Reconstruciion and Development

The Bank received. funds from. the Furdpean Bank for Reconstinction and Devclopmenr under the Energy Efficiency
Program (KyiSEFF), wlich the Bank lias joined in 2013, Parpose of the program is financing of dorporate; small and medivm
eénterprises, dnd also tétall customers for energy and watet efficiency in various sectofs: industty, consfriction, trade @nd
energy efficiency improvements of tesidential property. The Bank issued loans' to borrowers, eligible to. patticipate-in the
program with ‘intefest rates of 13%-22% per anaum in KGS and of 10%-12% per anaum in USD on loans to legal entitics.
and 14%-21% per annum in KGS on loans. to retail customers, with matutity not cxc.adulg 8 veats,

In 2024 the Banlk received funds. from: the Buropean Bank for Reconstraction and Development under the Financial
Intermediaties Framework for lending to micro, small and medium-sized enterprises (MSMEs). Purpose of the program is
financing investments in micto-, sinall and medium enterprises in the Kyrgyz Républic. The Bank issued loans. to borrowers,
eligible to participate in the program with interest tates of 13%-22% per annum in KGS and 10%-12% per annutn in USD,
with maturity not exceeding 8 years.

I ;:iér.!miinmf Ffnance C Jorperation

“The Bank reccived funds fmm Iatemational Finance Corporation fer financing of small and medinm efterprises and private
entrepteneurs in wor king capital increasé and investment projects. Tlie Bank-issued loans to bortowers, eligible to patticipate
in the progtam, at 17-23% per annum in KGS with’ maturity not exceeding 5 years.

Eunrasian Development Bark

In 2024 the Bank teceived funds from the Burasian Development Bank for financing of the public-private pqrtneuhlp project
“Construction and.maintenance of the Byp'}sa Road Around U/gen . The Bank issued a loan to one borrower, in-the amount
of KGS 435,000 thousand, 2t 9% per annum in USD with maturity not exceeding 5 years.

State Development Bank.

Tri 2024 the Bank received funds from the State Dev eloprment Bank under the “1 'ugetcd Financing throughi Partrier Bariks”™
program for finaricing of the’ pm]ectb aimed 4t diversifyitig and stimulating the cconomy of the Kyrgyz chubhc cfeating jobs’
and ‘equilizing. 1egi_om_l economi¢ development. The Bank issued 2 loan to one horrower jn the amount of
KGS 350,000 thousand at 8,82% per annum. The Bank recognised the borrowed funds and the loan issued at fair value at
initial recognition using market interest tates of 13,92% and 16,21%, réspectively.

_Miﬁé‘_!.’_? of ] Fiuaiee of Kyrgyz: Ropublic

The Barik received funds from the Ministry of Finance of Kyrgyz Republic jointly with KFW under-the government progtam.
“Agro business and Man{zefmg on specml purpose financing of the agricultural sector. The Bank issues loans to agricultural sector
botrowers, elig_iblc to participate in. the program, denominated in KGS at 11%-16%: per annum with matutity not exceeding
5 years.

State Morigage Company OJSC

The Bank 1ece1ved funds froni State Moitgage Company QJSC under the government program “Aflordable Honsing 2075 10
2021 years” on-special puzpose financing of mortg: age products. The Bank issues:loans to borfowets, eligible 1o paruclpatc in
the program, denomlmted in KGS at 0%-8%- per annui, with maturity not C\cccdmg 10 vears,
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20, Other borrowed funds (continued)

Financial comenapits
The Bank has to comply with financisl covenants in relation to logns from fimancial institutions.

Asat 31 December 2024, the Bank was in compliancé with the financial covenants. The Bank doés not expect any breaches
of cavenants within 12 mionths from the date of approval of the-financial statements,

As 2t 31 December 2023, the Bank was not in compliatice with the financial covenant Leverage’K2:4 under the loan agreement
with Russian-Kytgyz Development Fund in the amount of KGS 7,934 thousand, and Intetnational Findnce Corporation
covenant related to cross-default in the amount of KGS 727,861 thousand.

Reconcilition of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing actvifies for 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

2024 2023
As at 1 January 2,973,432 759,964
Proceeds from other borrowed fﬁndg 3,901,185 '.'2,5'2'_6,14'7
Repayment of other borrowed funds (2,278,462} (319,766)
Net change in accrued interest 4,416 9872
Forcign exchange adjustments (6,546) (2,785)
Discount on initia) tecognition (82,512) =
As at 31 December 4,511,513 2,973,432

21,  Equity

Issited capital and share premium

As at 31 Décember 2024 the number of authatised and 1ssued ordinary shares were 6,000,000 shates (31 Décember 2023
2,000,000 shares) with 2 nominal value of KGS.1,000 pet share.

In 2024, based on decision of the general sharcholders’ meeting dated 29 March 2024, the Bank increased number of

authotised: ()1dll‘.ﬂl’y‘ shares by 4; 000,000 shares paid at their nominal value by transferring retained earnings 1o share capital in
the amount of KGS 4,000,000 thousand. The issnance of shares was tegistercd on 20 June 2024,

The holders of ordinary-shares are entitled: to- receive dividends as declared from time to ime-and are entitled to one vote pex
share at annual and general meetings of shareholders-of the Bank.

Dividends

‘The NBEKR sets for the Bank individual requircm"ent of capital buffer at the level of not less than 20% as:at 31 December 2024
(31 Decembet 2023: ot less thari 20%), The Bank’s capital buffer 45 at 31 December 2024 wis 17.99% (31 December 2023:
20.29%). According to NBKR Tnsteuction “Ou establishment of capital adeguecy standards. for commervial banks of the Kyrp Repubiic
ipproved by the Resolution No, Ne'2022-1T-12/63-1:(FII'TA) dated 12 October2022 of the Mamgernent Board of the NBKR
(last tevised on 25 September 2024), banks are not allowed to make decision on dividends distiibution, if the capital buffer,
calenlated by deducl:lng dividends pl'«mncd for payment, is below the capital buffer Himit cstablished by the NBKR. There are
no other restrictions and prescriptions for non-compliance with the capital bufferrequirement.

'Du_ri_ng- 2024; ‘according to' the decision of the Gian-;‘-ra_l_ meeting of sharéholders ‘dated 29 March 2024, dividends to
sharcholdets in the amount of KGS 792,000 thousand -or KGS.396 per ordiniry share were deglared and paid.

Duaiing 2023 po dividends were declared orpaid to the sharehiolders.

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the net profit for the year atirfbatable to ordinary sharcholders and
weiglited averdge number of ordinaty shates outstanding and is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2024 2023
Net profit attributable to holders of ordinary shares 2,070,349 2,479,046
Weighted average number of ardinary shates- 4,120,219 2,000,000
Earnings per share, in KG8 502 1,240

There were nd potentially dibutivé shares for the yeai's ended 31 Decamber 2024 and 2023.
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22.. Risk management

Management of risk s fundamental to the business of banking and is an essential element of the Bank’s operations, The major
risks faced by the Bank are those related to marlker risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Risk management policies and procedures

The tisk management policies aim to identify, analyse.and manage the risks faced by the Bank, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and to continuously menitor risk levels and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and procedures are
teviewed tegularly to reflect changes in matket conditions, products and services offered and emerging best practice.

Board of Directors

The Bourd of Ditectors has overall thaonslbﬂlr} for the oversight of the risk management fraimework, overseeing
the management of key risks and reviewing its tisk management policics and proceduites as well as 2 approving significantly
lazge exposurcs,

Risk Manzagenment Canmittes

In-order to assist the Board of Directors of the Bank in determining-the priority directions of the Bank’s activities in the arca
of banking risk and to assist in creating conditions for proper risk management, the Bank established a Risk Managemcnt
Committee (hereinafter — “CRC). Members of the' CRC are members of the Board of Directors,

Management Board

The Managément Board is responsible for momtolmg and implementation of tisk mitigation. measures ‘and making sure that
the Bank operates witlin the established tisk patameters.

Risk Management Departrient

The Head of the Risk Management Department 15 responslblc for the overall risk management and compliance functions,
ensuring the implementation of common principles and methods for identifying, measuring, managing and reporting both
financial and non-financial risks. He reports ditectly to the Boatd of Dixectots.

Assel and Liability Management Conrniitee

Credit, market and liquidity tsks both at the portfolio and at transactional levels are managed and controlled through a systemy
-of credit committees and an-Asset and Liability Management Committee (AT.CO). In oider to facilitate efficient and effective
decision-miaking, the Bark established a hierarchy of credit committees depending on the type and amourit of the exposure.

Both external and internal dsk factors are ldmtlﬁed and managed tluough(mt thie organisation. Particalat attention is given to
ideﬂtlfymg the full range of dsk factors and determination of thelevel of assurance over the current risk mitigation progedures.
Apatt from' the standard credit and market risk analysis, the Risk Management Department monitors financial and non-
ﬁn’lncl'ﬂ nisks by hoIcllng tegu]m meetings: with operauonal units in order to obtain.expert judgments in their areas of expertise.

Maiket risk’

Matket fisk is the risk that the fair value or futute cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
variables such-as interest rates, foreign exchanges, and equity prices. Fxcept for the concentrations within foreign currency,
the Bask has no sigtiificant concentration of market risk: Overall authority for market risk- management is vested inthe ALGO,
which ‘is chaired by the General Manager. Macket dsk limifs are approved by the Board of Ditectors based on
recommendations of the Risk Maragement Depattmedt and ALCO. The Bank manages ifs market risk by sétting open
position limits i relation to fnancial instruments, interest rate matutity and catrency. positions. These are. monitored on a
tegulis hasis-and reviewed and approved by the Board &f Dizectors.
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22. Risk management (continued)
Marketrisk (conitinued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from. the possibility -thar clmng{,s in interest rates will affect future cash-flows or the fair values of
financial mstmmcnts The sensitivity of the statement of profit or loss: and other comprehensive income is the effect.of the
-assumed lengcs in interest rates on the net interest income for one year, based on the floating rate non- lmdlng ﬁmncml

assets and financial hiabilities held at 31 Iecember 2004,

Incréase / ' Sensitivity of Increase / Sensitivity of

decrease i1 basis net inoterest  decrease in basis fnetinterest

points dncome points income

Currency 2024. 2024 2023 2023
usD 100 32,036 100 16,875

Cureiey risk

Currency tisk is the disk-that the value of 2 financisl instrument will fluctuate due 1o changes in forcign exchange rares, The
Management Board hag set limits on positions by cuszency, Positions ate monitoted. on a daily basis.

The following table shows the foreign cutrency exposure structure of financial assets-and labilities as at 31 December 2024

_ Other _

KGS USD EUR currencies Total
Assets
Clash and eash eyuivalents -8,539,’_7_'15 10,991,614 _5,_'454,98[] 664,034 .'25”'6'5('}' 338
Amouats du from credit institutions: 47,090 8,033,761 454,314 - 8,535,165
Loans o customoers 13,595,526, 15,375,261 121,042 = 29, 091, 829
ln_vcstmunf ;‘-c(‘.u_riiir:s at amortised cost 2,352;320 . - = - 2, 352, 3;20
Other financial assets 320,393 213,457 25,383 38 559,271
Total assets 24,855,039 34,614,093 6,055,719 564,072 66,188,923
Liabilities
,\.mnuntk due tor banks 16,217 16,256 8,632 - 41,105.
Amounts due to customers 16,476,126 32,037,355 3,426,790 646,773 52,587,044
Orht,r bor mwcd fuml\ 1,57i],5_2_5 1,307,658 1,633,330 - 4,5_11,51:3
I.case Liabilities 71,860 273,137 - - 344,997
Other financial Tabilities 246,011 69,648 65,542 48 381,249
Total liabilitics 18,380,739 33,704,054 5,134,204 646,821 57,865,908
Net position as at' 31 December 2024 6,474,300 910,039 921,425 17,251 8,323,015
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22, Risk management {contintued)
Market risk (continued}

Churreriey visk: (vontimed)

"I'he following table shows the curtency structure of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2023

_ _ _ Other _

KGS {JsD EUR cutreticies Total
Assets
Cashand éash equivalents 10,176,054 9,456,963 3,263,034 1,164,696 24060747
Amounts doc from.credit inséitutions 45418 6,689.953 - - 6:735,371
Loans to customers 1,115,007 10449377 94,510 —  21,658,8%
Tnvestment seenrities at m‘rmrt'isc_d'_c_q;:t (,130,989 - - - 1,130,989
(thir Zﬁﬂ:mcfal assets 285 481 191,788 123,315 20 600,604
Total assets 22,752,049 26,788,081 3,480,859 1,164,716 54,186,605
Liabilities
Amounts due to banks, 12,057 20,389 0,736 - 42,382
Amiounts due to customers 14730486 24468920 2,897,014 L7495 43213915
Other borrowed funds 1,017,252 1,433,869 522,311 - 2973432
Lease liabilities 79119 278,050 - - 357,769
ither Financial labilides 252,683 61,421 10,699 30 324,833,
“Fotal liabilitics 16,091,597 20,263,449 3,439,760 1,117,525 46,912,331
Net position ds at 31 December 2023 6,661,352 524,632 41,099 47,191 7,274,274,

The tables below indicaté the currencies to which the Bank had significant exposure asat 31 Decornber on its monetary asscts
and liabilities, The analysis calculates thie cffect of a teasonably: possible movement of the currendy rate. against the
Kyrgyz Som, with all'other variables held constanit on profit or loss. The effect on equity does not différ from the effect on
profit orloss. A negative amount in the mble reflects A potential net reduiction in profit or loss or equity, while a’ positive
amount teflects a:net potential increase,

Clhiange in Effect Change in Effect

curfency take, on. profit CLEICHCY LRIE; on profit

) in % before tax n% bofore tax

Cartency 2024 2024 2023 2023
UK Dotlar +10.15 92,369 +16.07 84,308
+5.04 45,866 16,07 (84,308)

Ly +18.41 169,634 +18.44 7579
+6.94, 63,947 1§44 (7,579

Credif nsle

Credit visk is the risk that the Bank will incur a Ioss hecanse s customers or counterparties failed to discharge their contractual
obligations. The Bank.manages and controls-credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing o accept for
individual counterparties and for geographical and-industry cencentrations, and by moniforing exposures in relation to such
Ymits.

“The B*mk has established a credic quality review process to ]novlde eatly identification of possible changes. in the
creditworthiness of countetparties, mcludmg regular collatesal revisions. Counterparty limits are established by the use of a
credit dsk Cl'lﬁblﬁ(..ailon systern, which-assigni each counterpasty a risk rating. Risk ratings.are subject to ngl.l]"lI revision. The

credit quality teview process allows the Bank to assess the potential loss as a result.of the risks to which it is exposed and take
catrective acton.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is génerally veflécted in the cagrying amounts of fnaficial assets in the statémernit of
financial position and unrecognised contiactual commitment amioints,
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22, Risk management (continued)
Credit risk (contihued}

Cridit-refutod vommiitnents risks

‘The Bank makes available to iis customers gnarantees which may requite-that the Bank make payments on-their behalf, Such
payments ate collected from customets based on the tetms of the letter of credit. They expose the Bank to similar risks to
loans and these are mmg‘ited by the same control processes and policies,

The maximum exposuré to eredit risk for the components of the statemént of firiancial posidon before the effect of mitigation
thiougl: the vise of collatéral apreéments; is licst represefited by their carrying amounts,

For more detail on the maximum exposure to credit fisk for each class of financial instrument, references. shall be made to
the specific notes.

Trgpairment assessmens

The Bank caleulates ECL lyased on séveral probability-weighted scenatios to meastire the expected cash shortfalls, discounted
atan approximation to.the EIR, A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash Howis thiat arc due to.an éntity in accordance
with thé coritract and tlie cash flows thit the éntity éxpects to teceive. The mechanics of the FCL. calculations are outlined
below and tlie key elements are as follows:

The Prohability of Defanit is an estimnte of thie likelihood of defaulc over 2 given time hotlzon. A default

may only happen at 3 certain . time ovet the assessed pedod, if the facility has not beenr previously
e D derecogriised and is sdll i the portfolio.

The Exposure af Defagl? is an estimate of the exposure at.a futare default date, taking into ‘account

expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, incliding repiyments of prin¢ipal and inteiest,

_ whether schieduled by contract or othenwise, expected drawdowns on committed Facilifies, and. accrued

s EAD  interest from missed payments,

The Less Given Defan/t is an estimateé of the loss atising in'the case-whese 1 default occurs at agiven fime.

It'18 based on the difference betivéén. the contractual ¢ash flows duc and these that the lendér would
_ expect. £0 récéive, mcludmg froin the realisition of any collateral. It is usially expiessed 45 a percentage
L LGD  ofthe EAD.

The ECLallowance is based on the credit losscs &\ptctcd to arise over the lifc of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss
or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit sisk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based
én the 12-months’ expected ceedit loss (12mECL). The 12mECL is the portion of LTECL that represenr the ECLs that result
from default events on 4 financiul-instrumient that are possible within the 12-months after the teporting date. Both LTRCI,
and 12mECL dre calenlated od either an individual basis ot a €ollective basis, depending-on the natute of the underlying
po‘rtfd]io of financial instrumeénts.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment,.at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial
instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the-change in the risk of default
occurring.over the remaining life of the financial instrument. Based on the above process, the Bank groups itsloans into Stage
1, Stage 2, .Stage 3 and POCI, as described below:

Wheti loans afe first recognised, the Bank recognises an allowance based on 12mECL. Stage 1 loans also include
Stage 1: Facilities where the ¢redit visk-has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stige 2.

Whien o loan has shown 4 significant incfease in credit risk:since otigination, the Bank records an allowance for-

the LTECL. Stage 2 loans alse include faciliies, where the eredit risk has improved and the loan has been
Stage 2: reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. The Bank records an allowance for the LTECL..
Purchased or-originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets that are etedit impaired. on- indtial
tecognition. POCT assets-dre recorded at fair value at original recognition and interest revenue is subsequently
recogitiséd based.on & credit-adjusted EIR. ECL are only recognised or released to the extent that theré is a.
POCE: subsequent change i the lifétiine expected credit losses, -

37



Demir Kyrayz Tnternational Bank CJsC Notes t¢ 2024 financial statements

(én thensands of Kyrgyz Som)

22,

Risk management (continued)

Credit risk {continued)

Definition of defantt and cnre

The Bank considers a financial instrament defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases
when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments. The Bank considers amounts due from hanks
defaulted and rakes inmediate dction when the required intraday payments are not scttled by the close of business as ouftined
in. the individual agrecments.

The Baﬁ_k'-consﬁders a borrower to be in default- whn:

"The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full, withour recgurse by the Bank to actions such

s realising security (if any is held);

The borrower is past due mote than 90 days on any material credit ol)hg'lt.lorl to the Bank. ‘Overdrafts are considered
as being past. due once the customer has breached an 'ldvlsed limit or been advised of a'limit smalter than the current
amount outstanding; ot

It is- becoming probable that the borrower will restrhciure the asset as.a tesult of bankmpicy due to the borrower’s

inability to pay its credit obligations.

In z_i‘sacssiﬁg whether a borrower is in default, the Bank considers indicatots that ate:

Qualitafive ~ ¢.g- breachies of covenant, liquidation, withdriwal or suspension of a license; catastrophic events, as 2
sesult of which the activities of the counterparty were suspended, event of ctoss-default-on other obligations of fhe

counterparty;

Quantitative — e.g, overdue status and non-papment on another obligation of the same issuer to. the Bank; financial

institutions rated I and RD-at the reporting date; and

Based on data developed internally and ebtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessmént of whether g financial instrumenit-is in defaudt-and their sipnificance may vaty over time to reflect
clmngcs in circumstances. When such. événts oceut, the Bank carefully considers whether the event should result in- t-re'ltmg
the customer ds defaulted and thetefoie assessed as Stage 3 -for BCL ealeulations or whetlier Stage 2 15 appropriate.

The following criteria are used to move borrowers from Stage 3 to Stage 2:.

.6.rhonths of regular payments according to the restinetured payment schedule;

Iniproveiment of financial condition of the horrowet,

Absence of past duc days and impairment indicators.

The followihg'cﬁtcﬁa. are used to miove horrowers from Stage 2 to Stag¢ 1:

6 months of regular payments according to the restructured payment schedule;

Tmprovement of fnancial condition of the bortower;

Absence of past due days and indicators of significant increase in credit risk;
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22, Riskmanagement (continued)
Credit risk {continued)

PD estimation process

Treasury and fnterbark relationships

'l"he-B:_mk’s treasury and interbank telationshiips and counterparties comprise financial services institutions, banks and clearing-
‘houses. For these relalionships, the Bank’s credit risk departihent apalyses publicly available informatior: such as finsincial
information and other external data, ¢.g., the external ratings, and assigns the:intetnal rating,

fn_ tecnational: International
external rating agency - external rating agency Internal rating
(Fitch and S&P) rating (Moody’s) rating description PD-
o AAA Ana 0,00%
Ad-fo AA+ Aad to Aal 0:00% — 0.04%
A to A+ A3 to At High rating 0.07% - 0.08%
BBB- to BBB+ Baa3 to Baal ' 0.11% - 0.27%,
BB- to BB+ Ba3 to Bal 0.42%.- 0.94%
B- to B+ B3 to B Standaid rating. 1.19% - 3.45%
Cto CC Ca Sul> standard 35.39%
D C Imopaired 100%

Corporate and SME. lendin 3

1in the case of commercinl lendinig, the botrowers aze assessed by the Bank's Cotporate Lending Departnent. The credit risk
assessment 15 based on-a credit scoring model that tzkes info account various ‘historical, cuttent and forward-looking
information such as:

. Maximum number of overdue days for the assesied period;

. Historical financial information together with forecasts and budgets. prepared Ly the bortower. This financial
information includes realised and expected results, solvency ratios, liguidity ratios and any other relevant fatos fo
measure the bortower’s financial performance. Some of these indicators are captured in covenants with the borrowers
and are, therefore, measuted with greater attention; '

- Auy other shjecttvely supportable information on the quality and abilities of the Lorrower’s management télevant Cor
the borrower's petformance.

Retail Jending

Retail lending compises tetail loans, consumer loasns, morfage and credit cards. These products along with mortgage loans
and some-of the less complex small business lending ate rated by an automated scorecard tool primarily driven by days past
due.

Expasure at defanit

The exposure-at default (EAD) reptesents the gross carrying amount of the financial insfruments subjéct o the impaiiment
calculation. To caleulate the EAI? fora Stage 1'loan, the Bank assesses the possible default events within 12 moriths forthe
calculation of the 12mECL. Far Stage 2; Stage 3 and POCI fﬁmndal’a'ssets, the exposure it default.is considered for events
overthe lifétime of the insttuments.

Loss giverr defanly

The Bank estinvates LGD indicators on the basis. of informiation on the ratios of return of finds with respect to.claims against
counterparties thiat bave defaulted on their obligationis. 1.GD valuation medels take into account the structure, type of
“collateral, seniority of the claim, the industry in which the counterparty operates, and the cost of recoveting any collateral that

15 an J'nt'egral. patt of a financial asset, For loans secured by feal estare of individials, the ratio between the loan amount :m_d

the value of collateral (L.TV ratia} is'the main parapictet for detefmining the amount of loss in case of default. LGD indicators

are calculated based on discounted cash flosvs using-the effective interest rate as a discount factor.,
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22. Risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Lo given dofantt

Whete appropiiate,. further récent data and forward-looking cconomic scenarios are used i order to determine the TFRS 9
LGD tate for-each.group. of financial insttuments. When qssessi'ng forward-looking information, the expecmtion is based on
multiple seenarios. Examples of key i inputs involve changes in, collateral values including property prices for marigages,
commodity prices, payment status or other factors that are indicative of losses in the group.

LGLY levels are estimated for the Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI segment of each dsset class. The inputs for these L.GD
rates are gstimated and, whete possible, ealibr at_ed through back testing against recent récoveries. These are repeated for each
econoniic scenario 4s appiopriate. h

Significant tircrease. in-credit risk

The Bank contmuouql)r monitors all assets subject to ECLs, In order 1o determine whether an instrument or 2 portfolio of
instruments is subject to T2mECL or LTECL, the Bank assesses whether there has been a sigmﬁmnt inctease in credii tisk
since initial recognition.

The Bank considets teasonable and suppotinble information that is relevant and availible without uiidue cost or effort. This
includes bothi quantitative and qualitative information and analysis; based on the Bank’s historical experience and expert credit
assessment and including forwardJooking information. The Bank uses following criteria for deterrmmng whether there hias
been'n significant incredse i credit risk:

. Sigmificant detedoration of the-financial condition of the bottower;
o Significant deterioration of the competitive position of the borrower in its-dindusiry;
. Sigﬂiﬁcﬁ'ﬂ_t- delays in tealization of investments prdj{:_cts"_(consttuc_ti_on-or‘-t)ﬂler'scctnt) of morc than 6 montl which

resulted in deteroration of financial perforividnce of the borrower;

. Sigrificant decreasé in the value of the financial instraments in the activemarket from the dite of initial Tecognition
of the instrument;

. Tuvolvement of the borrowet in litigation for the amount of the claim exceeding 20% of its assets;

° Decrease in the market value-of collateral by more than 50%, external orinternal factors that may lead to 2 complete

or partial loss of collateral;:

. Systematic brédch of prudential standards set. by the regulator;

] Implementation of the direct banking supeivision procedire by the NBKR i regard to the botrower;
. Violation of the law, problems with government bodies;

° Refusal 16 provide financial statements fora period of more than 6 monLl;.s';

. Avoidance of cadifacts with the Bank;

. Contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

When estimating ECLs on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Bank applies the same principles for assessing
whether thére has been a significant increase in cfedit risk since-initial recognition.

Gronping financial assets measured oit-a collective bavis

Dcp_c:ndc‘_nt on the factois helow, the Bank cileulates RCLs either on a collective or o an individual basis.
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22. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Asset classes where the Bank calculates BCL on an indi\_.riduall basis include:

. Top 20 borfowets by gross exposure, regardless of the cusrent impairment stage;
s Individually significant asset (gross. caitying value éxceeds 20% of tatal equity of the Bank);
. The treasuiy and interbarik relationships (such 4s amounts due from banks, cash eqaivalents and investment securities

at zmortsed cost);

. Exposuies that have been classified as POCI when the original Ipan was derecognised and a new loan was recognised:
as a result of a credit driven debt restructuring,

Asset classes where the Bank caleulates ECL on a collective basis'include:

. “The smaller and mote generic balances of the Bank’s corporate and small business lendinig;

s Mottgage and consumer loans:

'I'he_'B_ank groups these exposures into smaller homogeneous portfolios, based on 2 conibination of intemal and: external
characteristics of the loans, for example overdue bucket, product type, ox borrower’s industry.

f*'ana:arﬁ—/@ok;.{{g-i}gfém;afimx and :‘f:f;/ff}i:le eonemic seeharios

The inputs and models used for. caleulating ECLs may not always capture all chatacteristics of the market at the date of
the financial staternents. The Bank obtains the forward-looking information from third pasty souzces (the National Statistic
Committee, the Ministry of Economy of the Kyrgyz Republic, private sector and academic forecasters). Hxpetts of the Bank:
determine the weiglts atiributable to the multiple scenarios. The tables show the values of the key. forward looking economic
vatiables/assimptions used in each of the economic scenarios for the ECL cateulations.

The table below ﬂlo'ws thf: values of the key foﬂ\rai‘d'flcokiﬁg eco_rl'orﬁi_c variables/ assumptions used in each of the econdrnic
scenarios for the BCL calculations as at.31 December 2024 and 2023,

31 December 2024 Scenario  Probability, % 2025 2026

Volume of teansfers, USD million

Upside. 14% 2,762 3,00'}'
Base case %, 2,445 2,690
Downside 14% : 2,128 2,374
Uncmplo_ymcnt rate, Yo
Upside 17% 1.97 1.97
Base case B1% 228 2,28
Downside 20% 2.60 2.60.
31 December 2023 Scenatio 'Prob:_lbffi?y, % 2024 2025
USD/_K_GS exchange rate ) )
Upside 6% 87.22 89.84
Base case 68% 95.13 97775
Downside 26% 1 (}3,"(17_1_ 105.66
Consumer price index, %
Bpside 14%- 101.42 99.62
Base case 6% 106.90 105;10
Pownside 20% 112.38 110,58
Unemployment raté, %%
Lipside 23% 2.51 246
Base cise 61% 2.82 277
Downside 16% 313 308
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22. Risk management (continued)
Credit risk (¢continued)

Geographical concentration

The geographical concentration of the Bank’s financial assets.and liabilities is set out below:

O_t_her _ Total
Ryegy=- Other CIS non-OECLY QECD  31December
Republic counirics counttics CoOURIEes 2024
Agsets
Cashand cash equivalents 11,013,798 3,273,489 576,830 10,780,221 25,650,338
Amouns dui from crédit istitutions 399,521 872,343~ 671,903 6,591,398 8,535,16_5
Lgians to custominrs 28,728,841 75,769 60,532 226;68_7 29,091,829
ltivestment securities ar amortised cost- 2,352,320 - - - 2,352,320
Other financial assets _ 240,785 14,522 - 303,964 589,271
Total asscts 42,738,265 4,236,123 1,309,265 17,908,270 66,188,923
Liahilities
Amounts due to banks 14,302 61 - 26,742 41,105
Amgints dué (o customicrs 46,391,669 2,808,698 1,404,111 1,982,566 52,587,044
Orther bortowed funds 2,789,752 437,538 - 1,284,223 -4,511,513
1.cast Habilitics 344,907 - - - 344,997
Orihée finarcial lialxlities 366,894 6,090 - 8,265 381,249
Total liabilities 49,907,614 3,252,387 1,404,111 3,301,796 57,865,908
Net position (7,172,349) 983,735 {94;846) 14,606,474 £,323,015
_ _ - Othrer Total
Kyrgyz Cther GIS non-QECD OECD 31 December
Republic countries counities cougttics 2023
Asscts
Cash and cash cquivilents 13,787,524 1,532,250 853,369 7 887,604 24,060,747
Amounts doe from éredit institations 134,967 - 1,328,958 5,271 446 6,735,371
Lodng to customicrs 21,314,603 221,109 77313 45,869 21,658,894
Investmient seeurities af amortised cost 1,130,989 - - - 1,130,989
Othet financial assets 19445 19,661 - 386,498 660,604
‘Total assets. 36,562,528 1,773,020 2,259,640 13,501,417 54,186,605
Laabilitics
Aniounts due to bariks 16,086 61 - 26,235 42,382
Amaownts due to customers 36,652,816 4,161,998 1,124,812 1,274,289 43,213,915
Oither borrowéd -funds 1,989,126 7.934 - 976,372 2973432
Lease liabilities 357,169 - -~ - 357,769
Orther financiald Habilités 275,511 6,236 - 43,086 324 83%
‘Total liabilitics 39,201,308 4,176,229 1,124,812 2,319,982 46,912,331
Net position {2,728,780) (2,403,209) 1,134,828 11,271,435 7,274,214
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under normal and
stress circumstances. To. limit tlifs risk, management has arranged diversified funding sousces in addition to its core de_pos"it
base, managgs assets. with liquidity in mind, and monitors future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basts. This incorpotates an
assessment of expected.cash flows 2rd the aviilability of high grade collateral wlhich could be used to secure additional funding
if required.
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22. Risk management (continuted)

Liquidity tisk (contiftued)
The Bank maintains ligquidity management with the objective of ensuring that funds will be available at all times-to. honor all

cash flow obhganam. as they become due: The Investment and Treasury Policy is a pazt of the Risk Manag(.ment Policy, which
is teviewed and approved by the Boatd of Dicectors.

The Bank secks to dctively support a diversified and stable funding base comprising long-teim and short-term loans from
other finasicial inistitations, core corporate and rétail customer déposits, accomipanied by diversified pottfolios oL highly liquid
dssets, in order to be able to respond quickly and smoothly to unforeseen liquidity requitements.

The liquidity management policy féquites

° Projecting cash flows by major cutfencies and considering the level of liguid assets necessary.in relation to maintaining
4 diverse: Fange. of: fundlng sources;

. Mataging the conceéntration and profile of debts;
. Mumataining debt ﬁufmcing plans;
.. -Maintaininig a portfolio of highly marketable asscts that can easily be liquidated as pmtectlon against any mtcnupﬂon

‘to cash {low;
. Maintairiing liquidity and funding contingency plans;.
. Monitoring liquidity ratios against regulatory tequirements.

The Treasury Departritent receives infofmation from business units tegarding the liquidity profile of their financial asséts and:
liabilities- and details' of other projected cash flows assing from projected futute business. The: Treasury Department ‘then
provides for an adequate portfolio of short-term liquid assets to be maintained, largely made up-of short-term liguid securities,
loans and advances to banks and other intes-bank facilities, t6 ensuré that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Bank as
a whole. -

The following’ rables show the undiscourited cash flows-on- financial liabilities and ciedit-elated commitments on the basis of
their catliest possible contractual marurity, The total gross ontflow disclosed i in the tables is the contrzeual, undiscounted
cash flow on the financial ].l‘_ll_)l!lt}’ or credit telated commitment, For issued financial guarantee contracts, the nraximiim
amount: of the guarantee is allocated to the eardiest pefiod in which the guarantee canbe called.

The tabie below shows an analysis, by expected maturities, of the amounts: recogmsed n the stitement of Tinancial position
as at 31 December.2024:

On
demand’
and legs
" than Tto3 Fto 12 Io# 3t05 More than
As ar 31 December 2024 1 month months months years yeats. 5 years Total
Amounts due to banks 41,105 - - - - - 41,105
Amounts due to
customers 37,220,094 1,625,262 10,196,787 4,607,689 10,469 — 53,660,301
Other Loirowed funds 1,954,668 597,572 642,777 1,244,168 245,369 149,447 4,834,001
Lease labilitics 12,460 8,792 74,204 168,326 93,967 18,094. 375,843
Otlier financial labiiies 143,310 510 222,075 999 14,355 - 381,249

Total financial Habilittes 39,371,637 2,232,136 11,135,843 6,021,182 364,160 167,541 59,292,499
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22. Risk management (continued)

Liquidify risk {continued)

The maturity analysis for commitments-and contingencies as at 31 Trecermber 2024 is as follows:

On
demand
and less
than Tt03 Jwiz 1to3 3105 More than
As at 31 December 2024 1 month months months years yeats 5 years. Total
Credit related
commitments 6,965,337 - - - - - 6,965,337
Performance guarantees 701,838 - - — - = 701,838
7,667.175 - - - - TR 667,175

The table below shows an analysis, by expected maturities, of thie: amounts recognised in the statement of Bnancial position

as at31 December 202%;

On
demand
and less
_ than fto3 3012 13 3105 More than
Ag ar 31 December 2023 1 month months months years years 5 years. Toral
Amounts due to lanks 42:382 - - - - = 42382
Amounts due to
customers 34,814,977 1,092,928 5,759,236 2,081,124 9,409 507 43,758,181
Qther borrowed funds 2,723,500, 374 94,987 193,611 3,335 585 3,016,392
Lease labilities 13,159 9,676 70,468 156,801 95,650 44,606 390,360
Qiher financial kabiines 80,284 510 228,505 835 14,699 - 324,833
Total finaneial liabilities: 37,674,302 1,103,488 6,153,196 2,432,371 123,093 45,698 47,532,148
The maturity analysis for commitments.arid contlingencies 45 at 31 December 2023 is as follows:
On
dernand
and less More
than 103 3to12 It03 303 than
As ar 31 December 2023 1 month months moriths yeats Jears .5 years Total
Credit related
commitments. 9,019,147 - - - - -~ 9019,147
Performince guirantees. 862,205 - - - - - 862,205
' 9,881,352 - - - - — 9,881,352

In accordance with Kyrgyz legislation, individual depositors can withdraw their term deposits-af any time, forfeiting in most
of the cases theacerued interest. These deposits are classifted in accordance with their stated maturity dates.

Each undtawn loan: commitment is included in the rime band Cont'unmg the earliest date it can be drawn down, For issued:
financial guarantee contracts, the. maximum amount of the guatantec is allocated to, the earliest period in which the guarantee.
could be called. TheBank expects that not all of the credit related commitments will be drawn before expiry of

the co_mrmr_mt:ms_

Operational risk

Opcratlonal risk is.the risk of loss arising, from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to
perform, operational tisks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory lmphcatmﬂs, or lead to financial loss. The
Bank cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but a control framework and monitoring and responding to potential
risks couldbe effective tools to manage the iisks: Controls should inchade effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation
and recoriciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes,including the use of internal audit.
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22. Risk management (continaed)

Compliance risk

Compliance 1isk encompasses regulatory and legal compliance risk. Compliance risk is the-tisk that the Bank incurs financial
or reputdtional risk through imposition of penaltics or fines as a result of not adhering to applicable laws, niles and regulations
and good matket practice (including ethical standards). The Bank’s compliance function pJ.O'ICUV(:]Y sceks to enhance
complidnce risk manigement and the supporting control framework. The Bank operates in a market where there s a significant
level of regulatory change activity, therefore, compliahce risk is a key area of focus for Management. The compliance function
monitors: this sk through feférénce to metrics relevaat to the Bank; review of incident rt;]_)(nts_’md assessment, risk ancd
conirpl assessments pertaining 16 the first and secoiid lines of-defence fanctons, resulls 6f regulatory assessments, and teview
of tesults of internal and external andit reports,

23. Commitments and contingencies

Operating environment

Kyrgyz Republic conitinues economic reforms. and developaient of its legal, tax and regulatory ffameworks as réquited by 4
matket cconomy. The fature stability of the ecpriomy is largely dependent upon these teforms-and developments and the
effectiveness of cconomic, finasicial and monetary méasires undertaken by the governipent:

Emerging-atkets such as Kyrgyz Republic are subject to different risks than more-developed matkets, includiog economic,
political, socidl and legal tisks. Laws and rcgulqtmm affectmg businesses in the Ky 8yZ chubhc continue to chaage rapidly,
tax and regulatory frameworks ate subject to- varying interpretations. The. futufe economic direction of the Kyrgyz Republic
is heavily influenced by the fiscal and monetary policies adopted by the government, together-with developments in the legal,
egulatory, and political environment.

‘The management of the Baalk believes that it i taking.appropriate measures to support the:_sus'rﬂinability of the Bank’s business
in the-cutrent dircumsrances,

Inisurance

The insurance industry in the Kyrgyz chuhhc is in-a deveiopmg state and maniy formis of insurance pmtu:l:lon common ix
other parts of the world ate not yet gcm.m]ly -available. The Bank does not have Full coverage for its premises and equipment,
business {ntecruption, or third party liability in respect of property or envitonmental damage adsing from acciderits on its

property or relating to, operations. Unéil the: Bank obrains adequate insurance coverage, there is.a 1sk that the loss or
destruction of certain assets could have a material adverse effect on opetations and financial position,

Legal

In the ordinary coursé of business, the Bank is subject to legal actions and complaints. Management helieves that the ultimate
liability, if any, arising from such actons or complaints will not have a matesial adverse effect on the financial condition or
the results of future opératdons of the'Bank.

In 2019, the Bank won 2. lnwsuit and claimed pledged property from a ptohlcrn botrower. However, the botrower sold the
pledged propety ta-a third party befote thic coutt's deciston. In]une 2020, 4 third party, who' purchased the pledged property,
filed a'Jawsuit against the Bank in the amount of KGS 78,727 thousand for comipensation of material and motal damage
cansed by testricions m:pmcd by the Bank against the propesty. As at 31 December 2023, the legal process with the third
pasty related to this matterswas compleied in favor of the third patty. According to the rulling of 5 December 2023, the Bank
had to repay matetial and motal damage in the amount of KGS 30,444 thousand, which was patd in 2024;

Taxation

The taxation system in Kyrgyzst'm i relatively new and is characterised by frequent clmnges in legislation, official
pronouncéments and court dccmons which are often unclear, contradictory and subject to varying interpretation by different
tax authouties, Taxes are sub}ect to-zeview and mvestlgatmn IJy a tumber of authorities, which have the authority to impose
severe. fines, penaltics and interest charges. A tax year remains open for review by the tax authorities during the three
subsequent cilendar years. However, under certain circumstances a tax yedr may remain opeén 4l six ealendar years:
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23, Comimitments and contingencies {continued)

Taxation (continued)

These circumstances may create tax risks in Kyrgyzstan that are substantially more signiﬁ'mnt than in other conntries.
Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities based on its interpretations of applicable Kyrgyz tax
legislation, official pronounccrncnts of couit decisions. Flowever, the interpretations of the relevant authosties could differ

and the éffect on financial position of the Bank, if the duthotitics were suceessful in enforcifig theit inferpretations, could be
significant,

As at 31 December 2024 the Bank's management believes that its interpretation of the relevant legislation is appropriate and
that the Bank’s tax, currency and customs positions will be sustained,
Pensions and retirement plang

In accordance with the laws and regu]fluons of the-Kyrgyz Republic, employees have rights for state pension provlslons As at
31 December 2024 and 2023 the Bank is not liable for any supplementary penmona post-retirtement health care, insurance
henefits, or-fetiremént indemnities to its current or former employees.

Credit rélated commitments and contingencies

The Bank has. cutstanding credit related commitments to extend loans. These ciedit related comntifments take the form of
approved loan and credit. citd limits and overdraft facilities.

The Bank provides financial guarantees and letters of credit to customers. These agreements have fixed limits and gencrally
extend for a period ofup to five years.

The Bank applies the same credit risk: management policies and: procedures when granting- credit commitments, financial
guarantees and lerters of credit-4s it does for granting loans to customers.

The contractual amounts of credit related commitments ae sef Gut m the fn:ﬁk)v.a:lnz3 table. The amounts reﬂcctcd in the @hble
for credit relared comitritents assuine that imounts ate fully advanced.

31 December 31 December
2024. 2023
Credit related commitments

Undrawn.loan commitments 6,282,255 8,253,615
CGuarantees 683,082 765,532
6,965,337 9.019,147
Performance guarantees 701,838 862,205
Commitments and contingencies 7,667,175 9,881,352
ECL allowance for credit related comwnitments (Ne/e 17) 11,565, 6,033
BCL on pérformarice gu'\rfmrees (Noie 17) 52,152 045
Deposiis held as st.curlty Ag‘unbt gu.nantcu and létters of credit (J (Nere 19) 370,271 345,730

The total cutstanding: contractual credit related commitments abave. do not necessarily Ltpm-acnt future cash rcqu.uemunb
as these credit related commitments may expite o terminate without being funded. The majority of loan commitments do
not represeit an unconditional ctcdit related commitment by the Bank
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23. Commitments and contingencies {continued)

Credit rélated commitmerits and contingencies (continued)

An-analysis of changes in the allowanee for HECL dusing the year ended 31 De_{:emberl’_“(_ﬁ# is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

ECL as at1 Januaty 2024 6,453 525 - 6,978
New éxposufcs . 1,341 - - 1,341
Amounts paid or expireéd (1,289) (65) - (1,354)
Transfers 1o Stage 1 49 (49) = -
Transférs to Stage 2. (1,320) 1,320 - -
Trangfers-to Stage 3 S e (611) 611 -
Impact on period end JACL of exposutes transferred hefween -

stages during the perdod and changes to modelsand i inputsnsed

for ECL ealculations 5,948 (523) 51,404 56,829
Pmclgn exchange adjistments '(41) - (36) {(77)
As at 31 December 2024 11,141 597 51,979 63,717
An analysis of changes:in thie Allowance for ECL duiing the year ended 31 Decembict 2023 s as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

ECL as at 1 January 2023 10,639 543 - 11,182
New exposures 3,144 - - 3,144
Amonnts paid or expited. (2,065) (150) - (2,215)
"T'ransfers to Stage 1 130 (130) - -
Transfers to Stape 2 (3,487) 3,487 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 _ - - - -
Impact on petiod end ECL of exposures transferred between

stages during the pedod and changes to models and inputs used _ _

for ECL caleulations _ (1,920) (3,225) - (5,145)
Foreign exchange adjustments 12 - - 12
Asat 31 December 2023 6,453 525 - 6,978

24. Related party transactions

In accordance with 1AS 24 Related Party Divelostres, parties. aze considered to be telated if one party has the ability to control
the other party or exetcise significant influence/over the otherparty in making financial o opuahoml decisions, In considcrmg
each pmsﬂ)]c related paity relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the 1_clatmn_s_.11:p, aot merely the legal form:

Related parties may énter into transactions which unrelated paitiés might not, and transactions lietween related parties may
not be cffected on the same ferms, conditions and amounts s transactions benveen unrelated partes.
During 2024 and 2023 the Bank had transactions with Management and entities undet common contrel: Demir Flalk Bank

(the Netherlands), C-Bilisim (lurkey) HCBG Holding B.V. (the Netherlands), C-Technology 1LI.G (lxylg)v Republic) and C-
Real Estate L.I.C (Kyrgyz Republic).
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24, Related party transactions (continued)

The outstanding Balances of transactions witle telated parties are as follows:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Entitdes Entities
under Kéy manige- under Key inanage-
cornmon ment _ common mént
Sharcholders control  personnel Shareholders control  personnel
Loans to customers:
Gross exposure of loans. to _ _
customers - 222,854 8,672 - 236,885 2,858
Allowance for IXCL on loans to
customiers - (560} (147) - (510§ (25)
Right of use assets - 138,746 - - 138,746 —
Crther assets: - _94,'320 - - 3'_4,3_'81_ -
Amounts due to costomers 712,553 32,083 69,591 715 50,608 68,270
Lease liabilitics - 126,078 - - 151,106 -
Other liabilities — 1,625 - - 1,456 —

Dauring the year ended 31 December2024 the Bank has purchased intangible assets in amount of KGS 89,020 thousand (2023

KGS 86,382 thousand) from an entity under common coritrol,

Terms and’ concljup_ns of transactions with relarad parties are as follows:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Entities under Key Entitics under. Key
CONMNTION  amanagenicne _ comirion  rmanagement
 Sharcholders conttol personnel  Shareholders contral personiel
0.00%~
Loaris to customers. - Fa—=30% 17.35% - T 305 30%
COrther assets - - - - - -
3.00%— 2%— 2.0%— ) o
Amounts dae to cusfomers 4.28%, %% 12.5%;. - Wo—7%  2,0%~12.5%
Orther liabilides = - — - -~ -~
The income arid expense arising from related party trasisactions-are as follows:
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Entities under Key Entities under Key
_ Common  management _ comihion  management
Shareholders control personncl  Sharcholders control personnel”
Interest income caleulated using
effective interest rare - 15,632 33 - 16,320 583
Lriterest expense {18,744y (2387 (2,314) - {1,425) {17513
(Credit losses}/reversal of credic ' N
losg cxpense = (50} (122) - 131 32
Fee and comemission incom - 540 - -~ 308. -
“Odihier impaicnent and provisions - ‘57 - - 421 -
Other opérating expenses (5,015) (84,029) - (4,430) (78,580) -
Compensation of key managesment petsonnel was comprised of the following:
2024 2023
Salaties and other short-term benefits, including sociil security costs 196,841 186,746
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25. Fair value measurements

Fair value hiérar_chy

The Bank uses the following hicrarchy for determining and discl_(_)é_iﬂg“fht: faix value of financial mstruments by valuation

technique:
e Level 1: quoted (un::djust’ed)_ prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
. Tevel Z: other techniquies for which-all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are.abservable,

‘either directly or indiréctly; and

. Level 3: techniques which use inpurs which have a.significant effect on the fecorded fair value that are riot based on

‘observable masket data.

For the purpose of fair value disclosurcs; the Bank’s has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the natute,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as explained above.

As ar 31 Decombor 2024

Assets for which fair values are disclosed
Cash and eash equivalents

Amounts due from credit institntions
Loans 1o customers

Tavestment sceurities at amortised cost
Other hoancial asscts

Liabilities for which Tair values afe disclosed
Amounts due 1o banks

Ameounts duc to cistomers

Ohiher boreowed funds

Lease liabilities

Other financial Habilities

As ar 31 December 2023

Assets for which fair values are disclosed
‘Cash and cash equivalents

Amounts due from credit institotions

Laoans to. customers

lavestment securitics at amortised cost
Other financial asscts

Liabilities for which fair valucs are disclosed
Amoonts. due tobanks.

Amonnts due to customess

-Other borrowed filnds
- Liease liabilities

Other financigl Tiibilities

Date of Hair value measurement using

valuation Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totad
31 December 2024 3,869,855 21,780,483 —  25,650;333
31 December.2024 - 8,535,165 - 8,535,165
31 December 2024 - ' - 28,753,063 28,753,063
31 Docember 2024 - 2,381,494 - 2,281,494
31 Thecember 2024 - - 559,271 559-,27_1
31 December 2024 - 41,105 - 41,1[1_5
31 December 2024 ~ 52,647,650 - 52,047,650
31 December 2024 - 4,229 246 - 4,229,246
31 Decenber 2024 - - 344,99 344,997
31 December 2024 - - 381,249 381,249

Daté of Fair value measurement using

valuation Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 Decomber 2023 5,551,020 18309727 - 24,060,747
31 December 2023 - 6,735,371 - 6,735,371
31 December 2023 - - 21752793 24,752,793
31 December 2023 - 1,129,039 - 1,129,039
31 December 2023 - - 6[}0,604 600,604
31 December 2023 - 42382 - 42,382
31 December 2023 - 43248470 - 4E248470-
31 December 2023 - 2,036,831 ~ 2_;936;,831
31 December 2023, - - 3_57_,?"69 357_.769'
31 December 2023 - - 324,833 324,833
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25. Fair value measurements (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (confinued)

Set out below is a comparison by class of the c.lrrymg amounts and fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments that are
not catricd at fair value in the statement of financial position. The table docs not include the fair values of non- ﬁn'mczal
assets and fion-findncial labilities.

As at 31 December 2024 As ar 31 Decenrber 2023
Unrecog- Unrecog-
Cartying Fair nised  Carying Fir niscd’
value value gnin/(oss} value value gain/{loss).
F.i_na[lcial asscts _
Cash and cash equivalents 25,650,338 25,650,338 — 24000747 24,060,747 -
Amounts dee from credit institutions 8,535,165 8,535,165 - 6,735,371 6,735,371 -
Loans to customers 29,091,829 28,753,063 (338,766) 21,658,894 21,752,793 93,899
Investment securities at amortised cost - 2,352,320 2,281,494 (70,826) 1,130,989 1,129,039 {1,950}
Other faancial assets 569,271 559,271 - 500,604 600,604 -
Fimancial liabilities
Amounts dpe to banks 41,105 41,105 - 42,382 42,382 -
Amaounts due to customers 525587,{)44 5'2,6_47,6_'_50 {60,6006) :43 213 915 43,248.470 {34.555)
Orther borrowed funds 4,511,513 4,229,246 282,267 2973432 2,936,831 36,601
liease liabilides 344,997 344,997 - 357,760 357,769 -
Cther financial liabilities 33‘1,2{!9 381,249 - 324,833 324,833 -
" Total unrecognised change in fair value (187,931) 93,995

Valuation techniques and assumptions

The following describes the methodologies and 'tssmnptmns used to determine fair valuies for assets and hdbilities recorded
4t fair value inthe financial statements and thosc items that ate not measured st fiit valué in the statement of financial pasition,
Tut whose fairvalue is diselosed.

sAssets for which fair-value approximiates cqreving ralue.

For financial assets and financial abilitles that atc liquid or having a short-term matusity {Jess than three months) it is assumed
that-the cariying amounts approximate 1o their fait value. This assumption is also applied to demand deposits and savings
acconnts without a specific maturity.

Finacial assefs cued fironctal Gabilities carried at amortised cost

Fait value of the quoted ‘notes ‘and bonds is based on price quotations at the reporting date. The fair value of unquoted
iristraments, loans to. custoriers, customer deposits, amounts due from credit institutions, amounts due to banks, other
botrowed funds and dthet ﬁnmc:nl assets:and liabilities i§ cstimated by dmcmmtmg futare cash flows using rates clusrently
available for delit on similax terms, credit Hsk and zemmmg matuiities.

Daring the yedr ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, thete wete no transfers berween, levels.of the fait value hierarchy.
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26. Assets pledged as collateral

The table below pl.‘ovid_t-’:s a’‘suminary of ASSELS plcdg_t_:d by the Bank.

Jnvestment
-Carrying value Loans to securities at
of liabilities. customers.  amortisedcost _
{Notwe 20) {INofe 13} {(Note 14) Nei

-As at 31 December 2024
Qther borrowed funds:
State Ievelopment Bank (269,610) - 657,261 387,051
As at 31 December 2023
Other bofrowed finds:
Russian-Kyrgyw Developoient Fund {7.934 5,121 5,600 2,787

27. Maturity-analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities nccording to when they arc expected to be recovered or settded. See
Nete 22 "Risk managament” for the Bank’s contractual undiscounted repayment obligations,

3 December 2024 31 Deceniber 2023
Within More than Within More than

oneyedar  oneyear Total  oneyéar  oneyear Total
-Assets
-Cash aid casly equivalents 25,650,338 — 25,650,338 24,060,747 — 24,060,747
Atnounts due from ctedit institutions 8,228,257 306,908 8535165 6,445,812 289,559 6,735,371
Lodns to customess 9,700,412 19,382,417 29,091,820 7853775 13805110 21,658,804
Iovestment sccurities at amoriised cost 510,676 1,841,644 2,352,320 1,119,365 11,624 1,130,989
Propetty and equipment - 414,610 414,610 - 307,045 307,043
Tntangible asseis - 250,900 250,900 - 211908 211,908
Right-of-use assets - 3321 33621 — 43983 343983
Other aisets 734,656 276,794, 1,011,450 899,855 89,303 989,158
‘Total assets 44,833,339 22,809484 (7,642,823 40,379,554 15058,539  55,438.093
Liabilities _ _ _
Amounts due to'banks 41,105 - 41,105 42,382 - 42382
Amounts duL to customers 48,313,734 4,273,310 52,587,044 41427371 1,786,544 43,213, 915
Other bostowed funds 3,042,682 1,468,831 4,511,513 2,692,902 280,530 2,973,432
Cuttent income tax labilities 46,242 - 46,242, 71,743 - i 745
Deferred imncome tax labilitics - 73,842 73,842 - 35,530 35,530
Lease Labilites 82,927 262,070 344,997 80,911 276,858 357,769
Other liabilites 443,789 15,354 459,143 427,200 15,534 442,734
Total liabilities 51,070,479 6,003,407 58,063,886 44,742,500 2394096 47,137,505
Net (7,137,140) 16,716,077 9,578,937 (4,362,955) 12,663,543 8,300,588

As at 31. December 2024 and 2023 liabilities excecded assets by KGS$ 7,137,140 thousand-and by KGS 4,362,955 thousand;,
1e==pccl1vdy i “within one year” hucket. Negative liquidity gap is mainly attributible t6 amounts due to customers. Despite
the: available eatly withdrawal option -and -the fact that substantial porton of customer accounts aze on demand, the
management of the Bank believes that customers’ accounts provide a long-term and stable source of funding due to diversified
porifolio of customers.

The management of the Bank expects that the eash flows from certain Bnancial assets and lialilities will. be différent from
theit contractual terms. The Barik peiforms regulat liquidity stress testing under  viriety of scénarios covering both normal
and mose severe matker conditions, Based on the results of the stiess testmg the management esfimates that the Bank lias.
sufficient. liquldlrv to cover negative cugrent liquidity gap, without i lnulrrmg unacceptable logsés of dan age 1o the Bank’s
reputation.
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28.

Capita’l management

The NBKR sets and mdnitors eapitil requirements for the Baiik.

Under the cutrent capital requirements set by the N_'BKR, B'.t111{s"lmyc.to mainiain:

Total capital adequacy ritio (K21) — not less than 14%: The ratio is defined as the atio of net total equity to the
amount of risk-weighted assets and contingent liabilities less-special provisions to. cover poteéntal losses and generil
resefves plus 7. 14 1atio multiply by amourit of capital resetved to cover operational risks;

“Tier 1 capit] adeyuiacy ratio (K2.2) — not less than 9.5%: The ratio is defined as the ratio of tier 1 capital to the amount’

of r'i"-‘.l(w’\if('_ightéd agsers and contingent liabilifies less special piovisioss to cover poténtal 1o6sses -and general feserves
not included jn the tier 2 capirl (i.c. exéeeding 1.25% of the amount of rsk-weighted assets and contingent lialilities);

Tier 1 basie capital adequacy ratio (K2.3) — not less than 8%. The mtio is defined as the tatio 6f tier 1 hasic ¢apital to
the mnount of risk-weighted assets and contirigent liabilities less SP{:CIAI_ Provigions 1o cover pot_cn_rml losses;

Leverage 2. 4} ~ not Jess than 6%. “Tlie ratio-is defined as the ratio of: tm 1.capital to-total assets of the Bank plus
off-lalance liabilities cmmdcung credit conversion factors. Total assets of the Bank represent the tgtal assets on the
balance sheer of the periodic regulatory bank report less mmngz_b]e asscts.and special provisions.

The Bank was in complishce with the statutory capital tatios as at 31 December 2024 and 2023,

The following table shows the composition of the capital position calewlated in accordance with the: requirerents of
the NBKR, asat 31 December: .

31 December 3t December

2024 2033
Tier 1 capital 6,881,001 5,258,497
Tiet 2 capital 2,4'1'2,_93'1 2,798,631
Lesstinvestinents — -
Net {otal equity 9,293,932 8,057,128
Total disk-weighted assets and .contingent liabilifics less p:ovisib,1_1 for losses for - _

K21 '51_,'_7'53_,880 _3.9,702,'[33_
"Total assets and contingent liabilities less provision for losses for 2.4 73,610,739 61,531,662
Cﬂpﬂ‘ll 1o cover 01::er1t10n‘ll risk 661,565 523,249
Capital adequacy ratio K 2.1 16% 18%
Capital adequacy ratio K22 13% 13%
Capital adequacy ratio K 2.3 13% 13%
Leverage K 2.4 9% 9%
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